
1 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Meeting Agenda  
Continuum of Care (CoC) Board 

Wednesday, January 8, 2025 
2:00 – 3:30pm 

Ventura County Office of Education 
Administrative Services Center – Simi Room 

5189 Verdugo Way, Camarillo 
 

Zoom Meeting ID: 838 0635 1730 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83806351730 

1. Call to Order 
2. Board Comments 
3. CoC Staff Comments 
4. Public Comments: An opportunity for the public to participate in public meetings by addressing the Ventura 

County Continuum of Care Board in connection with one or more agenda or non-agenda items. Public 
comment is limited to 3 minutes per person during the opening part of the meeting and per item. The time 
allotment can be increased or decreased by the Chair depending on the number of speakers. This meeting is 
subject to the Brown Act and public comments may be submitted by using one of the following options: 

 Email in advance of the meeting: If you wish to make a written public comment, the comment must be 
submitted via email no later than 4:30pm on the day prior to the Board meeting. Send emails to: 
venturacoc@ventura.org  Please indicate the agenda item you would like to speak on if relevant and 
whether you would like your message read by staff or if you will be participating in person. 

 During the meeting: Participants attending online may use the chat function in zoom to indicate they 
would like to make a comment. Participants attending in-person can complete a public comment card 
indicating which item they would like to comment on and submit to the Board Chair. Staff will call on 
participants during the public comment section of the meeting or during specific items following staff 
presentation of the item. 

 

Continuum of Care Governance Board Business 
5. Approval of Board Minutes from November 13, 2024. 

 

6. Review and approve the VC CoC Nominations Committee recommendations to fill three (3) Board seats, 
effective January 8, 2025. (Presenter: Jenn Harkey) 
 

7. Approval to submit the Longitudinal Systems Analysis (LSA) Report as required by the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the Continuum of Care program. (Presenter: Jenn Harkey) 

 
8. Approval of recommendations for State of California Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention 

Program (HHAP) Round 5 grant funding as developed by the VC CoC Data, Performance & Evaluation 
Committee. (Presenter: Alicia Morales-McKinney). 

 
9. Authorization to Release of a Request (RFP) for Proposals for the California Housing & Community 

Development (HCD) Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Funding. (Presenter: Felipe Flores) 
 

10. Approval of a Reallocation of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care 
(CoC) Fiscal Year 2024-25 Rapid Rehousing (RRH) Grant (Presenter: Jennifer Harkey) 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83806351730
mailto:venturacoc@ventura.org


1 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Continuum of Care (CoC) Board 

Wednesday, November 13, 2024 
2:00-3:30pm 

Ventura County Office of Education 
5100 Adolfo Road, Camarillo 

Oxnard Room  
 

 
1. Call to Order: Dawn Dyer, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:02pm  

 

Board Members: Katherine Aguilar, Michael Nigh, Ingrid Hardy, Paul Drevenstedt, Mara Malch, 
Stefany Gonzalez, Dawn Dyer, Manuel Minjares, Dr. Sevet Johnson, Pauline Preciado 
 

Absent: Emilio Ramirez, Kevin Clerici, Jack Edelstein 
 

CoC Staff: Jennifer Harkey, Alicia Morales-McKinney, Felipe Flores, Christy Madden, Morgan Saveliff 
 

2. Board Comments: Dawn Dyer extended her heartfelt concern and best wishes for those affected by the 
Mountain Fire. Dawn also shared that her firm, the Dyer Sheehan Group, Inc. is releasing the July 2024 study 
of over 21,000 apartments county-wide showing that the average rent in Ventura County is $2,675 a month 
which is up 4% year-over-year and the current vacancy rate is 3.06% which is pretty consistent over the last 
4 cycles. The full report will be released on the Dyer Sheehan Group, Inc. website.  
  

3. CoC Staff Comments: Jenn Harkey encouraged those impacted by the Mountain Fire to visit 
venturacountyrecovers.org for information and resources. Jenn also shared that a Local Assistance 
Center will be opening starting tomorrow from 9am -7pm at the Ventura County Office of Education at 
5100 Adolfo Road and housing teams will be on site to help with assessments and relocation services. 
Jenn further shared that Kimberly Albers has been hired as the Housing Solutions Director for the 
County and will be working closely with the CoC. Kimberly was in attendance and introduced herself to 
the Board.  

 

4. Public Comments: None.  

Continuum of Care Governance Board Business 
 
 

5. Approval of Board Minutes from October 9, 2024. 
Manuel Minjares moved to approve; Mara Malch was second; Paul Drevenstedt and Dawn Dyer 
abstained; all in favor. Dawn requested a second motion to have her attendance changed from absent 
to attending online since she participated via zoom. CoC staff agreed and clarified that Board Members 
can only vote while in attendance in-person unless the absence is covid-related, and staff are informed 
ahead of time. Mara Malch requested the amendment be noted that attendance was remote, and 
member was non-voting. Dawn moved to approve the amendment to the minutes, Manuel Minjares 
was second; all in favor.  
 

6. Receive and File a Report on Progress to End Homelessness Among Veterans in Ventura County. 
(Presenter Alicia Morales-McKinney) 
Alicia shared an update on the Veteran One Team which includes the VA, various Veteran service 
providers, CES and CoC staff. Alicia shared that the committee is currently meeting weekly and has 



2 
 

been deemed a special population case conferencing group and the approach is to ensure that all 
unhoused veterans are connected to resources through this committee and the request is for general 
population providers to refer all veterans to the One Team to verify status and connect them to 
resources in real time. Alicia shared that as the One Team has expanded, so have services being 
provided to Veterans. U.S. Vets, Gold Coast Veterans, and SSVF were awarded street outreach funding 
which has allowed for more participation in backpack medicine and other outreach services. The VA 
has also expanded the partnership with the DELTA unit so that any incarcerated veterans are 
connected to Gold Coast Veterans and SSVF to determine eligibility for services and offer support with 
a transition plan. Lastly, Alicia shared current data for the 2024 calendar year. 110 homeless veterans 
were placed in SSVF Rapid Re-Housing programs and were connected to the HUD-VASH team. 50% 
were permanently housed and the remaining were matched to Ventura Springs which will begin move 
ins soon. As of November 1, 2024, there are 74 unhoused Verified Veterans on the By Name List and 
60 of those Veterans have been matched to permanent housing opportunities. 14 unhoused Veterans 
remain on the Verified By Name List and are pending transition to higher level of care or have out of 
County or specific city requests for housing placements. Further data can be found on the CoC Website 
October Board Packet.  
 
Michael Nigh inquired how many Veterans have moved into permanent housing and how many have 
been matched to housing opportunities. Alicia shared that as of November 1st 2024, 36 were placed 
into permanent housing this year, 60 were matched to permanent housing opportunities, and 14 
remain on the list. Michael Nigh highlighted and celebrated that the collective effort of Ventura County 
Service and Veteran providers will have ended homelessness for 96 homeless veterans in our 
community.  
 

7. Approval of the State Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program Round 5 
Timeline with Authorization to release Requests for Proposals for HHAP Round 5. (Presenter Alicia 
Morales-McKinney). 
Alicia requested authorization from the Board to approve the HHAP 5 timeline and release the RFP for 
HHAP 5. Alicia shared that this round of funding is similar to previous rounds with a few differences. 
Similar to other rounds of HHAP, there is a 50% disbursement requirement. Agencies will be required 
to draw down 50% of their funds by May 2026. This round of funding also has a minimum of 10% 
youth set aside requirement. Alicia shared that the State is pushing for funding to be used toward 
permanent housing and the CoC had to request to allow for interim sheltering which has been deemed 
eligible for existing programs. This round of funding also included an activity type for up to 1% for the 
HMIS Lead agency. The RFP would be released on November 14, 2024 with a due date of December 
6th, 2024. Recommendations would then be brought back to the CoC Board in January with CoC staff 
issuing contracts in February 2025. The full budget and timeline for HHAP 5 can be viewed on the CoC 
Website in the October 2024 Board packet.  
 
Dr. Johnson inquired how the budget for each eligible activity type was determined. Alicia shared that 
the HHAP 5 LOI was released earlier this year and all applications received were taken to the Data 
Committee to help determine that need. Mara Malch inquired if our County has capacity to expend all 
youth funds as allocated. Alicia shared that the need is there and more youth-serving institutions such 
as Moorpark College have expressed interest in applying. Dawn Dyer inquired if there are any 
significant changes from the HHAP 4 application, and if so, to highlight the changes in the RFP. Alicia 
shared that the largest change is around Homeless Prevention (HP). For this round, the State is 
requiring that individuals must be at the 30% AMI and spending more than 50% of their income 
toward rent in order to qualify for homeless prevention. Mara Malch inquired if CoC staff are able to 
participate in any advocacy efforts to request more flexible requirements to meet community needs. 
Jenn Harkey shared that CoC staff participates in the Southern California CoC Alliance and a lot of that 
advocacy goes directly to the State, especially in regard to some of these guidelines. Mara requested 



3 
 

for Board Members to be informed of potential opportunities for local or city advocacy in regard to 
policy or guideline updates. Dawn Dyer also suggested coordinating so that the less restrictive HHAP 4 
HP dollars be used for households who would not qualify for HHAP 5 based on the new guidelines.  
 
Michael Nigh moved to approve; Ingrid Hardy was second; all in favor.  

 
8. Approval of a Reallocation of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care 

(CoC) Fiscal Year 2024-25 Rapid Rehousing (RRH) Grant and Authorization for Ventura County CoC 
Staff to Release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a new subrecipient (Presenter Jennifer Harkey) 
Jenn Harkey shared that CoC Staff was recently notified from Lutheran Social Services that they will be 
pausing all operations in Ventura County. Jenn shared that we have received the HUD award for this 
grant and requested approval from the Board to release an RFP to reallocate funding to another 
subrecipient that has the ability to manage those Rapid Rehousing (RRH) funds. Jenn shared that it 
could be a County-Wide grant or it could be restricted to the Conejo Valley where LSS was previously 
located. The grant would be renewable funding in the amount of $223,295. Jenn lastly shared that she 
will be reaching out the HUD regional office to request if the grant term could be shifted for this 
specific contract. The RFP would be released on November 14th with proposals being due on December 
6th. The Rank and Review process would go to data committee on December 18th and 
recommendations would be brought to the Board in January.  
 
Board members requested that services be prioritized for East County due to significant impact on the 
community with the loss of services from LSS. Board members provided clarity that the request is only 
for a preference for East County and not a restriction. If no qualified East County proposals are 
received, the funds could be awarded to a non-East County provider.  
 
Dr. Sevet Johnson moved to approve the reallocation and for CoC Staff to release the RFP with a 
preference for services in East County and emphasis on readiness to begin expending funds within 30 
days; Manuel Minjares was second; all in favor.  

 
 
Additional items not on the agenda: none.  
 
Next meeting set for January 8th, 2025 
Meeting adjourned at 3:05pm 



 

 

 
January 8, 2025 

VC CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Review and approve the VC CoC Nominations Committee recommendations to fill three (3) 
Board seats, effective January 8, 2025. 
 
BACKGROUND: The Ventura County Continuum of Care (VC CoC) Governance Board includes 
representatives of relevant stakeholders, private and public officials, philanthropic representatives, local 
business, service organizations, programs serving homeless populations, and those with lived experience 
in homelessness. Representation of a broad array of our community will enhance the capacity to 
coordinate and leverage resources from various sectors across the region. 

The VC CoC Governance Charter allows for a minimum of 7 and maximum of 13 Board members. The 
current Board membership is found in Exhibit A (see attached). The following members terms ended in 
December 2024: Kevin Clerici and Michael Nigh. Also, one additional Board vacancy has resulted from 
the resignation of Oxnard Housing Director, Emilio Ramirez. Nominations for new VC CoC Board 
members were solicited through ongoing outreach to the VC CoC Alliance partners, VC CoC Committees 
and shared on the VC CoC social media pages.  

The VC CoC Board is responsible for voting on its membership and selecting members from the 
nominations provided. The VC CoC Alliance is responsible for generating nominations for the Board 
membership and ratifying the membership of the full Board annually at one of the quarterly meetings. 

The VC CoC Nominations Committee met remotely on December 2, 2024. This committee includes 1) VC 
CoC Board Vice Chair, Manual Minjares, 2) VC CoC Board Member, Jack Edelstein, and 3) VC CoC Board 
Member, Pauline Preciado. The committee discussed five (5) nominations received from various sectors 
and have recommended the following to fill the three seats: 

1) Jeff Lambert is the Chief Executive Officer of the Housing Authority of the City of San 
Buenaventura. Mr. Lambert is dedicated to reducing homelessness through the 
development of affordable and supportive housing in Ventura County.  

2) Matthew Pall is the Chief Executive Officer of Conejo Health, dedicated to addressing 
homelessness through programs to improve outcomes for those with substance use 
disorders and mental health issues. Mr. Pall is a leader in providing care to underserved 
populations and aligns with the goals of our VC CoC.  

3) Carrie Sabatini serves as the Director of Housing Programs and Deputy Executive Director 
for the Housing Authority of the County of Ventura. Ms. Sabatini has experience working 
as a Certified Public Accountant and expertise in managing public housing. She is 
dedicated to serving the most vulnerable in our community by providing housing for all. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Approve the VC CoC Nominations Committee recommendations of the three 
nominees to join the VC CoC Governance Board, effective January 8, 2025. 



Ventura County CoC Board Membership Updated as of: 12/31/2024

Name Organization Sector Join Date Term Years End Term 1 End Term 2 End Term 3 End Term 4 End Term 5

Paul Drevenstedt VC District Attorney Criminal Justice 1/1/2023 2 12/31/2024 12/31/2026 12/31/2028 12/31/2030 12/31/2032

Kevin Clerici Downtown Ventura Partners Business 1/1/2015 2 12/31/2016 12/31/2018 12/31/2020 12/31/2022 12/31/2024

Dawn Dyer Housing Advocate Advocate 1/1/2018 2 12/31/2019 12/31/2021 12/31/2023 12/31/2025 12/31/2027

Stefany Gonzalez Person with Lived Experience Formerly Homeless 1/1/2023 2 12/31/2024 12/31/2026 12/31/2028 12/31/2030 12/31/2032

Ingrid Hardy City of Thousand Oaks Government 1/1/2023 2 12/31/2024 12/31/2026 12/31/2028 12/31/2030 12/31/2032

Sevet Johnson County Executive Officer Behavioral Health 1/1/2023 2 12/31/2024 12/31/2026 12/31/2028 12/31/2030 12/31/2032

Mara Malch City of Simi Valley Government 1/1/2020 2 12/31/2021 12/31/2023 12/31/2025 12/31/2027 12/31/2029

Jack Edelstein Ventura County Community Foundation Non Profit Provider 1/1/2022 2 12/31/2023 12/31/2025 12/31/2027 12/31/2029 12/31/2031

Manuel Minjares City of Fillmore / County BOS Veterans 1/1/2019 2 12/31/2020 12/31/2022 12/31/2024 12/31/2026 12/31/2028

Michael Nigh Area Housing Authority of VC Affordable Housing 1/1/2015 2 12/31/2016 12/31/2018 12/31/2020 12/31/2022 12/31/2024

Katherine Aguilar* People's Self Help Housing Non Profit Provider 1/1/2023 2 12/31/2024 12/31/2026 12/31/2028 12/31/2030 12/31/2032

Emilio Ramirez Housing Director Public Housing 1/1/2020 2 12/31/2021 12/31/2023 12/31/2025 12/31/2027 12/31/2029

Pauline Preciado Gold Coast Health Plan Healthcare 1/1/2023 2 12/31/2024 12/31/2026 12/31/2028 12/31/2030 12/31/2032

*Temporarily filling the Board seat for Juliana Gallardo through 12/31/2024

2 year terms

5 term maximum



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

January 8, 2025 

VC CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Approval to submit the Longitudinal Systems Analysis (LSA) Report as required by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the Continuum of Care program. 

 
BACKGROUND:  HUD requires each Continuum of Care (CoC) across the country to submit data and 
information that is combined to create the Annual Homeless Assessment Report (AHAR) they submit 
annually to Congress. The AHAR is a national-level report that provides information about people 
experiencing homelessness, the utilization of homeless services and various characteristics of the 
unhoused population. The report is used for strategic planning purposes for federal, state and local 
initiatives designed to prevent and end homelessness.  

The VC CoC provides data from the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) to complete the 
Longitudinal Systems Analysis (LSA) to HUD for the AHAR. The scope of this annual report tracks 
progress against the federal strategic plan to prevent and end homelessness. The LSA data includes: 

• Demographic characteristics such as age, race, ethnicity, gender and veteran status; 
• Length of time homeless and patterns of services engaged; 
• Information specific to populations whose needs and/or eligibility for services may differ from 

the broader homeless population, such as veterans, youth, and people experiencing chronic 
homelessness; and  

• Housing outcomes for those who exit the homeless services system. 

A copy of prior AHAR data is available on the HUD Exchange at www.hudexchange.info/homelessness-
assistance/ahar.  

 

DISCUSSION: The first draft of the LSA data was submitted to HUD on November 14, 2024. The VC HMIS 
lead agency has been working with the HMIS vendor and VC CoC team to make adjustments, correct 
missing data and resolve warnings within the system. The VC CoC staff have been reviewing the system 
warnings and providing justification for final review by HUD. The final LSA report must be submitted to 
HUD by January 9, 2025.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve VC CoC staff to submit the final LSA report to HUD by January 9, 2025.  

http://www.hudexchange.info/homelessness-assistance/ahar
http://www.hudexchange.info/homelessness-assistance/ahar


 

 

January 8. 2025 
 
VC CoC Governance Board 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of recommendations for State of California Homeless Housing Assistance and 
Prevention Program (HHAP) Round 5 grant funding as developed by the VC CoC Data, Performance & 
Evaluation Committee.  
 
BACKGROUND:  The Ventura County Continuum of Care (VC CoC) staff released the HHAP-5 Requests 
for Proposals on November 14, 2024, with applications due on December 6, 2024.  County of Ventura, 
Administrative Entity, was awarded the combined CoC and Ventura County allocation of $6,877,797.20 
through Assembly Bill (AB) 129 with a required 10% Youth Set aside to assist unaccompanied youth. 
 
In response to the RFP, proposals for HHAP Round 5 funds were received in all state approved funding 
categories except for Homeless Management Information System. There were thirty applications 
submitted, of the thirty, twenty-six applications met eligibility and were included in the rank and review 
process with a total funding request in the amount of $23,484,037.00. VC CoC staff used a standard 
scoring criterion when reviewing the HHAP-5 proposals which includes the following categories: 1) 
applicant capacity, 2) project design and approach, 3) financial capacity, feasibility, sustainability, 4) past 
performance, 5) coordination and collaboration, and 6) funding priority. The VC CoC Data Committee 
reviewed the staff analysis of the proposals received and made funding recommendations based on the 
ranking of the top five VC CoC priorities, which includes 1) Delivery of Permanent 
Housing, 2) Operational Subsidies for Permanent Housing, 3) Prevention & Shelter Division, 4) Rapid 
Rehousing, and 5) Interim Sheltering. 
 
HHAP Round 5 continues to include a requirement for all sub-recipients to draw down 50% of their 
allocation by May 31, 2026 and meet outcome goals.  Meeting these requirements will allow Ventura 
County to receive the remainder disbursement.   
 
The chart below shows the proposals recommended for funding. Several proposals were not considered 
for funding for various reasons, including low priority, incomplete applications, and ineligible activity 
types. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HHAP Round 5 Funding Recommendations 

Eligible Activity  Funding 
Amount Up to 
$6,877,797.20 

Applications Received 

Delivery of Permanent Housing Recommended 
funding Total: 
$2,500,000 

Recommended For Funding  Recommended Amount 

Housing Authority San 
Buenaventura 

$2,500,000 

 

Not Recommended for Funding 

Many Mansions-Central Terrace/Rancho Sierra 

Human Services Agency Homeless Services Program-
Supportive Services 

People’s Self Help Housing-Fillmore Terrace 

U.S.VETS-Supportive Services 

Ventura County Behavioral Health- Supportive Services 

Cabrillo Economic Development Corporation-Camino de Salud 
 

Operational Subsidy Permanent 
Housing 

Recommended 
funding Total: 
$289,000 

Recommended for Funding Recommended Amount 

Turning Point Foundation 
Operational Subsidies 

$289,000 

Not Recommended for Funding 

Housing Authority of San Buenaventura- Valentine Rd. 

Mercy House-Casa de Carmen 

People Self Help Housing- El Patio 
 

Prevention and Diversion Recommended 
funding Total: 

$2,530,364 

Recommended for Funding Recommended Amount: 

United Way of Ventura County 
w/ Youth Set A Side * 

$1,430,364  

*($143,036.40) 

Human Services Agency- 
Homeless Services Program 

$1,100,000 

Not Recommended for Funding 

U.S.VETS 

City of San Buenaventura 

Catholic Charities 

Harbor House 



Samaritan Center 

Spirit of Santa Paula 
 

Rapid Rehousing Recommended 
funding Total: 

$500,000 

Recommended For Funding Recommended Amount 

Turning Point Foundation $250,000 

* United Way Ventura County 
w/ youth set aside * 

$250,000 

*($25,000) 

Not Recommended For Funding 

MESA Farm 
 

Interim Sheltering (existing 
only) 

Recommended 
funding Total: 

$657,636 

Recommended For Funding Recommended Amount 

Casa Pacifica w/ youth set a side *$657,636 

Not Recommended For Funding 

Interface Children and Family Services 

City of Camarillo 

Shelter Care Resources 
 

Admin 7% Allocation Recommended 
funding Total: 

$400,797.20 

Grant Administration for HHAP Regional Coordination activities. 

Total $6,877,797.20  Total recommendations: $6,877,797.20 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  

1. Approve VC CoC Data Committee recommendations for California Homeless Housing & 
Assistance Program (HHAP) Round 5 grant funding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibits: 1) VC CoC Data Committee Recommendations; 2)HHAP5 Staff Summary Scoring 



HHAP 5 VC CoC Data Performance and Evaluation Committee Recommendations

HHAP-5 

$6,877,797.20

Age
ncy

/O
rg

Pro
ject 

Title

Se
rvi

ce
 Area

Acti
vit

y T
yp

e and Prio
rit

y 

#

# of B
enefic

iarie
s t

o be 

se
rved

Youth
 Set a

 si
de?

Fu
nding Request

Youth
 Fu

nding R
equest

Secti
on I A

pplic
ant C

apacit
y 1

5 

points

Secti
on II 

Pro
ject 

Desig
n and 

Appro
ach

 20 points

Secti
on III

 Fi
nancia

l C
apacit

y, 

Fe
asib

ilit
y and Su

sta
inabilit

y 1
8 

points

Secti
on IV

 Past 
Perfo

rm
ance

 25 

points

Secti
on V Coord

inatio
n and 

Colla
boratio

n 12 points

Fu
nding P

rio
rit

y 1
0 points

Total S
co

re

Fu
nding 

Reco
mmendatio

n

Youth
 Amount

HACSB
Valentine Rd 

Apts
County

wide
Delivery 

of PH
134 

units/HH
no  $           2,500,000.00 

 $                   -   

15 18 18 25 12 10 98

 $          2,500,000.00  $                       -   

Many 
Mansions

Central 
Terrace and 

Rancho Sierra 
PSH

County
wide

Delivery 
of PH

58 
units/HH

no  $           1,573,254.00 

 $                   -   

15 17 14 22 12 10 90

 $                               -    $                       -   
Human 
Services 
Agency

Homeless 
Services 
Program 

County
wide

Delivery 
of PH

62 HH no  $              905,630.00 
 $                   -   

15 12 16 25 12 10 90
 $                               -    $                       -   

PSHH
Fillmore 
Terrace

County
wide

Delivery 
of PH

50/units 
HH

no  $           2,500,000.00 

 $                   -   

15 12 16 25 10 10 88

 $                               -    $                       -   

U.S.VETS Delivery of PH
County

wide
Delivery 

of PH
122 

units/HH
no  $              945,437.00 

 $                   -   

15 13 14 20 12 10 84

 $                               -    $                       -   

VCBH
VCBH Housing 
Supportive 
Services

County
wide

Delivery 
of PH

300 HH no  $           1,347,281.00 
 $    48,979.00 

15 12 12 17 12 10 78
 $                               -    $                       -   

CEDC
Camino de 

salud
County

wide
Delivery 

of PH
24 

units/HH
no  $           3,000,000.00 

 $                   -   

12 16 10 15 12 10 75

 $                               -    $                       -   

Turning Point 
Foundation

PSH Op 
Subsidies 
(Wooley 

House/Stephe
nson Pl)

County
wide

Operati
onal 

Subsidie
s

25 no  $              500,000.00  $                   -   15 20 18 24 12 10 99

$289,000  $                       -   

HACSB
Valentine Rd 

Apts
County

wide

Op 
Subsidie

s PH
122 units no  $              303,012.00  $                   -   15 18 16 25 12 10 96

 $                               -    $                       -   

Mercy House
Casa de 
Carmen

County
wide

Operati
onal 

Subsidie
s PH

55 
units/HH

no  $              500,000.00  $                   -   15 17 16 25 12 10 95

 $                               -    $                       -   

PSHH El Patio PSH
County

wide

Operati
on 

subsidie
s PH

65 no  $              298,804.00  $                   -   15 17 13 20 12 10 87

 $                               -    $                       -   

United Way 
of Ventura 

County

Home Safe 
Program

County
wide

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

180 20  $           1,863,932.00  $  186,393.00 12 20 13 25 12 10 92

 $          1,430,364.00  $      143,036.40 

Homeless Prevention

Op Subsidy PH

Delivery of PH

$2
,5

00
,0

00
 B

ud
ge

t
$2

89
,0

00
 B

ud
ge

t



HHAP 5 VC CoC Data Performance and Evaluation Committee Recommendations

HSA
Homelessne

ss 
Prevention

County
wide

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

750 No  $           2,500,000.00  $                   -   15 20 11 22 9 10 87

 $          1,100,000.00  $                       -   

U. S. VETS
Homelessne

ss 
Prevention

County
wide

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

110 no  $           1,035,808.00  $                   -   15 15 12 20 12 10 84

 $                               -    $                       -   

City of San 
Buena 

Ventura

Homelessness 
Prevention 

and Diversion 

City of 
Ventura 

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

156 16  $              650,000.00  $    65,000.00 10 14 13 18 8 10 73

 $                               -    $                       -   
Catholic 

Charities of 
Ventura 
County

Eviction 
Prevention 

Program

County
wide

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

50 no  $                 50,000.00  $                   -   9 10 12 13 10 10 64

 $                               -    $                       -   

Harbor 
House

Homelessness 
Prevention

Camarill
o, 

Moorpa
rk and 
Thousa
nd Oaks

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

25 no  $              100,000.00  $                   -   7 10 12 15 8 5 57

 $                               -    $                       -   

Samaritan 
Center

Homelessness 
Prevention

Simi 
Valley

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

30 no  $              222,200.00  $                   -   7 6 14 10 8 10 55

 $                               -    $                       -   

SPIRIT of 
Santa Paula

Harvard 
Navigation 

Center

Fillmore 
& Santa 

Paula

Homele
ssness 

Preventi
on

49 no  $                 35,000.00  $                   -   7 5 6 5 8 10 41

 $                               -    $                       -   

Turning 
Point 

Foundation

H2H Rapid 
Rehousing

County
wide

Rapid 
Rehousi

ng
50 no  $              327,515.00  $                   -   15 20 17 24 12 10 98

 $              250,000.00  $                       -   

United Way 
of Ventura 

County

Landlord 
Engagement 

Program 
(LEP)

County
wide

Rapid 
Rehousi

ng
90 7  $              500,000.00  $    38,885.00 14 20 18 23 12 10 97

 $              250,000.00  $        25,000.00 

MESA Farm
RRH - Youth 

Set Aside

Unincor
porated 
County

Rapid 
Rehousi

ng
16 16  $              460,053.00  $  460,053.00 15 16 16 18 12 10 87

 $                               -    $                       -   

ICFS
Hope y 

Oportunidad
County

wide
Interim 
Shelter

80 TAY 80  $              341,195.00  $  341,195.00 15 19 18 24 12 10 98  $                               -    $                       -   

Casa Pacifica

Stepping 
Stones 

Transitional 
Housing 
Program

County
wide

Interim 
Shelter

24 TAY 24  $              657,636.00  $  657,636.00 15 18 17 20 12 10 97  $              657,636.00  $      657,636.00 

City of 
Camarillo

Camarillo 
Hotel 

Voucher 
Program

County
wide

Interim 
Shelter

24 
individual

s/HHs

No (not 
unacco
mpanie

d)

 $              189,280.00  $                   -   15 19 18 23 12 8 92  $                               -    $                       -   

$5
00

,0
00

 B
ud

ge
t

$6
57

,6
36

 B
ud

ge
t

Rapid Re-Housing

Interim Sheltering

$2
,5

30
,3

64
 B

ud
ge

t



HHAP 5 VC CoC Data Performance and Evaluation Committee Recommendations

Shelter Care 
Resources

Shelter Care 
Resources 

Youth Motel 
Voucher 
Program

County
wide

Interim 
Shelter

75 
families

No (not 
unacco
mpanie

d)

 $              178,000.00  $                   -   12 15 17 22 12 8 86  $                               -    $                       -   

Total 
request  $         23,484,037.00 

Total 
Funding 

Recommen
dation  $          6,477,000.00  $      825,672.40 

Total RFP 
Funding 
available  $          6,477,000.00  $      688,000.00 
CoC Grant 

Administrat
ion (7%)

 $              400,797.20 

Total
 $          6,877,797.20 

Total Amount 
$6,877,797.2



HHAP 5 Staff Scoring Summary and Notes for Committee Members 

Applicant:   

Project Title:   

Eligible Activity Type:   

Total Amount Requested:   

Youth Set aside:   

Threshold Review & Evaluation 
 

Basic review for 
completeness 
and capacity 

 
• All required responses and attachments are included. 

Applicant demonstrates capacity to fulfill all program 
requirements. 

• Timely audited financial statements 
• Liquidity 
• Measurements of vulnerability (e.g. net profit margin, 

fundraising efficiency, dependency on the County or a single 
entity for financial strength) 

• Submitted by deadline 
Program eligibility: 
proposal aligns 
with HHAP eligible 
use(s) 

• See page 5 -6 for Eligible HHAP uses and local priorities for HHAP 2 

Program eligibility: 
serves homeless 
persons or those at 
imminent risk of 
homelessness 

 
• Serves homeless persons or those at imminent risk of 

homelessness as defined in 24 CFR 578.3 

Alignment with 
California’s Housing 
First Policy 

 
• The applicant has addressed the core practices for services 

projects (CCR 25 8409 b) and all core components (WIC Title 
Chapter 6.5 8255 b) in California’s Housing First Policy for housing 
projects. 

• Alignment with California’s Housing First Policy 
o o CCR Title 25, 8409(b) and/or 
o WIC Div.8, Ch. 6.5 8255(b) 

Homeless 
Management 
Information System 

• The applicant commits to use of HMIS, including timeliness and 
data quality standards, demonstrates adequate capacity for data 
collection and reporting 

Coordinated Entry 
System 

• The applicant commits to participation in CES. Street Outreach 
must serve as entry points. Rental Assistance and Rapid Rehousing, 
Housing Location Services (Landlord Incentives) and Permanent 
Housing must receive all referrals from CES. 

 
Staff Review of 
Threshold Review 
(Comments) 

 
Does application comply with 2 CFR 200 Part 2400 Uniform Requirements? 



 

Score Category Scoring Criteria Staff Notes & Preliminary Score 
Applicant Capacity 
(max score: 15 points) 
 
Good, Fair, Poor 

• Experience providing similar 
services and housing to homeless 
persons or other vulnerable 
populations for which funds are 
being requested. (5 pts)  

• Experience addressing the needs 
of the target population (5 pts)  

• Sufficient capacity for project 
oversight and administration (5 
pts)  

 

 

Project Design and 
approach (max score: 
20 points) 
Eligible activities (in 
order of priority): 

1. Delivery of 
Permanent 
Housing 

2. Operating 
Subsidies 

3. Homeless 
Prevention 
and Diversion 

4. Rapid Re-
Housing 

5. Interim 
Sheltering 

6. Services 
Coordination 

7. Coordinated 
Entry Systems 
Supports 

8. Shelter 
Improvements 

9. Street 
Outreach 

 

• Project is based on best practices 
framework proven methods 
(5pts)  

• Project approach demonstrates 
positive outcomes (3 pts)  

• Project design reflects CoC 
Written Standards and ability to 
address homeless challenges (3 
pts)  

• Anticipated numbers served 
appear reasonable given the 
prioritization of vulnerable 
individuals and families within the 
homeless population (2 pts)  

• Staffing pattern is reasonable to 
provide long term housing 
retention. (2 pts)  

• CoC system targets: (if applicable 
to their activity type-are they in 
range) (2 pts)  

o Reduction in # of persons 
experiencing 
homelessness by 10% 

o Reduction in # of persons 
who become homeless 
for the first time by 10% 

o Increase in the # of 
people exiting into 
permanent housing by 
12% 

o Reduction in the length of 
time persons remain 
homeless by 15% 

o Reduction in the # of 
persons who return to 
homelessness by 1% 

o Increasing successful 
placements from street 
outreach by 20% 

 



• HUD Thresholds: (3 pts) -1 
o Exits to PH is 80%. 
o Exits with Earned Income 

is 20%. 
o Exits with Mainstream 

Benefits is 56%. 
 

Financial Capacity, 
Feasibility, 
Sustainability (max 
score: 18 pts) 
 
Pass, Concerns, Fail 

• Budget clearly shows use of funds 
and staffing pattern to sustain 
project (3 pts)  

• Cost per beneficiary (overall cost/ 
# of beneficiaries) (3 pts)  

• Reasonable project costs (2 pts)  
• Degree to which project leverages 

agency and community resources 
(2 pts)  

• Outstanding and/or unresolved 
audit findings (2 pts)  

• Demonstrated capacity to 
operate the project based on its 
budget (2 pts)  

• Demonstrated capacity to 
effectively manage the finances 
of the project (e.g. invoices 
submitted in a timely, complete 
manner) (2 pts)  

• Describes specifically how the 
project will continue after the 
one-time funding is exhausted, or 
how it will end with the least 
negative impact on participants (2 
pts)  

 

 

Past Performance  
(Max score: 25)  

• Provided annual performance 
report demonstrates a proven 
track record of permanently 
housing individuals and/or 
families in a similar project (10 
pts)  

• Data collection and reporting will 
allow for accurately reflected 
outcomes and performance (5 
pts)  

 

 

 

 

 

 



• Clearly addresses how a 
current/similar project enhances 
system performance by reducing 
the length of time persons 
experience homelessness, 
reduces returns to homelessness, 
and increases both cash and non-
cash income of participants (10 
pts)  

 
Coordination and 
Collaboration  
(Max score: 12)  

• Preference for applicant providing 
services countywide (2 pts.) and/or 
underserved areas  

• Demonstrates coordination with 
other agencies and providers for 
the proposed project to enhance 
service delivery and avoid 
duplication (2 pts)  

• Agency demonstrates history of 
collaboration (2 pts)  

• Coordination with other agency 
activities and funding sources (2 
pts)  

• Links participants to mainstream 
resources and critical services not 
provided by the project (2 pts)  

• Adequate staffing for Coordinated 
Entry System participation and 
case conferencing (2 pts)  

• If sub-recipients, clearly show role 
of each agency and partnership  

 

 
 
 

Funding Priority (max 
score: 10)  
 
 

• Application submitted meets one 
of the Top six CoC Board approved 
funding priorities (10 pts) 

1. Delivery of Permanent Housing  
2. Operating Subsidies PH 
3. Homeless Prevention and 

Diversion 
4. Rapid Re-Housing  
5. Interim Sheltering 
6. ANY youth set aside project 
 

 
 

Total (Max score: 100) Recommended score:  
 

Additional Staff Notes 
 
 

 

Committee Notes 
 

 
 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

January 8, 2025 
 
CoC Governance Board  
 
SUBJECT: Authorization to Release of a Request (RFP) for Proposals for the California Housing & 
Community Development (HCD) Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Funding.  
 
BACKGROUND: The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) released a 
Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for State Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding on 12/26/24, 
with applications due on 3/28/25. This program funding will be awarded to administrative entities of the 
Continuum of Care (CoC) through the HCD application process. A resolution must be approved by the 
County Board of Supervisors to authorize the County Executive Office to administer the funds as the 
Administrative Entity (AE). 
 
Beginning with this Program Year, the CA Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) will 
now plan on issuing one ESG NOFA every three years, capturing all three years of estimated HUD funding in 
one application and Standard Agreement. Applicants awarded under this 2024 ESG NOFA will enter into one 
Standard Agreement (contract) that identifies the following Annual Funding Cycles: 
 

• 1st Annual Funding Cycle (initial contract) – 2024 – 2026 (Initial Annual Funding Cycle has an 
expenditure period of 21 months instead of the regular 24 months)  

• 2nd Annual Funding Cycle (subsequent amendment) – 2025 – 2027  
• 3rd Annual Funding Cycle (subsequent amendment) – 2026 – 2028  

 
Funding for each subsequent Annual Funding Cycle under the Standard Agreement will be completed 
through a contract amendment process. Subrecipients with active contracts under this NOFA will receive 
notification from the CoC for the updated allocations for the Annual Funding Cycles 2025 – 2027 and 2026 – 
2028, once HCD has signed the grant agreement with the  CoC.  
 
ESG funds may be used for four primary activities: Street Outreach, Rapid Re-Housing, Emergency 
Shelter, and Homelessness Prevention. In addition, ESG funds may be used for up to 10% of associated 
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) costs and administrative activities for sub recipients. 
A minimum of 40% of the allocation must be used for Rapid Rehousing activities. This program funding is 
subject to the ESG federal regulations established by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD).  
 
DISCUSSION: Total funding to be awarded is a preliminary allocation of $609,987.00, of which approximately 
$18,299.00 is allocated to the administrative entity for grant administration. The grant term will cover 3 
Annual Funding Cycles, 2024-2026, 2025-2027 and 2026-2028.  A minimum of $236,675.20 (40%) will be 
awarded for Rapid Re-Housing in accordance with state and federal regulations.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize VC CoC staff to release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the State 
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding on 1/10/25.  



Acronym Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25 Nov-25 Dec-25

Veterans _ _ _ _ NOFA
$1,033 _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Non-Veterans _ _ _ _
NOFA 
$804.9 _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Non-Veterans (HHAP Homekey Supplemental*) NOFA            
$290.7

Tribal _ _ _ - NOFA
$89.4

Tribal (HHAP Homekey Supplemental*) _ _ _ - NOFA*
$32.3  - _ - _ _ _ _

AHSC _ Awards _ _ _ _ NOFA
$595 _ Apps Due _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

** all funds 
awarded ** _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

_ _ _  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

IIG-Catalytic

IIG-Small Jurisdictions

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

CalHome Tribal _ _ _ _ NOFA
$14 _ _ Apps Due _ _ _ Awards

LHTF NOFA
$53 _ Apps Due _ _ _ Awards

Entitlement _ _

Non-Entitlement _ _

_ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$12 _ Apps Due _ _ _ Awards _ _ _

_ NOFA
$8 _ _ _ Apps Due _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$8 _ _ _ Apps Due

Non-Competitive

Competitive

PRP

HK

HK-Tribal

TAY _ _ _ _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Transition to 
HCD _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Transition to 
HCD _ _ _ _ _ NOFA

$760 _ _ Apps Due _ _ _ _ _

Tribal HHAP Transition to 
HCD _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

ERF Transition to 
HCD _ Awards for 

Window 2 _ Awards for 
Window 3 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

MORE

CHAP

PAS

LGMG

Advance Allocation

MPO Direct Allocation

Tribal/Rural

Higher Impact Transformative 

_ NOFA
$36 _ _ _ _ Apps

Due _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$30 _ _ _ Apps

Due _ _

_ _ _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$30 _ Apps

Due _ _ _ _ _ _ _ Awards _ _

_ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$8

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$30 _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$8

HOME-ARP _ _ _ NOFA
$16 _ _ Apps

Due _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _

ESG _ _ _ _ _ NOFA
$11 _ _ Apps

Due _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _

NHTF OTC Awards Comp Apps
Due _ Tribal Apps

Due Comp Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ Apps
Due _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ Funding Release
$47 _ Apps

Due _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ Awards _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_ _ _ _ _

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

Apps             Due 

Awards

Awards

PIP
Prohousing Incentive Program Round 3

Applications Accepted 
Over-the-Counter       

** CY 2020 Allocation must be 
requested prior to 5/1/2024 **         

CY 2023
NOFA
$165

** all funds awarded **

Applications Accepted 
Over-the-Counter       

** CY 2021 Allocation must be requested prior to 5/1/2025 **        

Local Housing Trust Fund Program ** all funds awarded **

Rolling Awards

$1.89B

NOFA
$54

MHP $30
IIG $24

Apps Due

Community Development Grant Program (2025)

NOFA
$418

MHP $273
FWHG $120

IIG $25

SB2 - Building Jobs and Homes Act (Dedicated Source)
NOFA Amounts in Millions

PLHA
Permanent Local Housing Allocation - Formula 
Program

Permanent Local Housing Allocation - Competitive Program

CalHome Tribal

Infill Infrastructure Grant Program - Small Jurisdictions ** all funds awarded **

NOFA
$161

CalHOME $127
FWHG $34

CY 2024
NOFA
$165

Applications Accepted 
Over-the-Counter       

** CY 2021 Allocation must be requested prior to 
5/1/2026 **    

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

$30M

Proposition 1 - Behaviorial Health Infrastructure Act (2024)
NOFA Amounts in Millions

Homekey+HK+ Applications Accepted Over-the-Counter 
with Rolling Awards Beginning May 2025

** all funds awarded **

Apps Due

Multifamily SuperNOFA

$173M $38M

Transit Oriented Development Program

$262M $2.49B

Awards ** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

Applications Accepted OTC with Awards Ongoing Until Funds Committed ($40M)

2017 Mitigation Resilient Infrastructure Program (Round 2) Applications accepted on a rolling basis until funds committed* ($15M)

OTC Apps
Due

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

Portfolio Reinvestment Program 

Homekey 3.0

Manufactured Housing Opportunity and Revitalization Program ** all funds awarded **

Other State Funded Programs
NOFA Amounts in Millions

NPLH

Homelessness Housing Assistance & Prevention Round 5

Encampment Resolution Funding

No Place Like Home Program

OTC Awards

Rolling Awards

2023 Mitigation and Resiliency Center Program (Santa Cruz, San Joaquin, Merced Counties) Applications accepted on a rolling basis until funds committed ($12M)

California Department of Housing and Community Development
Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) Calendar 

Updated August 2024
** All amounts are estimates subject to change based on the availability of funds at the time of NOFA issuance **

Tribal Multifamily SuperNOFA
Multifamily Housing Program (MHP)

Infill Infrastructure Grant Program (IIG) - Qualifying Infill Projects 

SB3 - Veterans and Affordable Housing Bond Act (Prop 1) and Subsequent General Fund Augmentations
NOFA Amounts in Millions

Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund
NOFA Amounts in Millions

Homeownership Super NOFA

CalHOME General

Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program

Multifamily Housing Program (MHP)

Joe Serna Jr., Farmworker Housing Grant Program (FWHG) - Multifamily

Infill Infrastructure Grant Program (IIG) - Qualifying Infill Projects

Veterans Housing and Homeless Prevention Program (VHHP)

Estimated Funds Available by Quarter            

Joe Serna Jr., Farmworker Housing Grant Program - Single Family

Infill Infrastructure Grant Program - Catalytic ** all funds awarded **

Homekey Tribal

2020 ReCoverCA Owner-Occupied Reconstruction (includes Mitigation Retrofits Program)

2020 Disaster Recovery Multifamily Housing Program (DR-MHP)

Community Development Grant Program (2024)

Emergency Solutions Grant (2024)

Excess Sites Local Matching Grant Program

Pet Assistance and Support Program

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

Federally Funded Programs 
NOFA Amounts in Millions

** all funds awarded **

Applications Accepted OTC with Rolling Awards

2021 ReCoverCA Single-Family Reconstruction (includes Mitigation Retrofits Program)

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

** all funds awarded **

Tribal Homelessness Housing Assistance & Prevention Round 3

Applications Accepted OTC with Rolling Awards

2018/2020 Homebuyer Assistance Program

California Housing Accelerator Program

Federally Funded Disaster Response and Recovery Programs
Amounts in Millions

HOME

Disaster Recovery Multifamily Housing Accelerator Program (DR-MHP ACCEL) (Projects with at least one existing HCD direct award issued prior to 2024 in 
Merced, Santa Cruz, San Luis Obispo, San Joaquin, or Ventura County)

Prohousing Incentive Program Round 4

Transitional Age Youth Program Allocations Acceptance   
Over-the-Counter

Rolling Awards

HOME Investment Partnerships Program (2022/2023)

National Housing Trust Fund (2024/2025)

HOME Investment Partnerships Program (2025)

OTC Apps
Due

HOME Investment Partnerships Program - Reentry Housing Pilot Project

REAP 2.0 Regional Early Action Planning Grants 

Rolling Awards

Homelessness Housing Assistance & Prevention Round 6
HHAP

No Place Like Home (Prop 2)
NOFA Amounts in Millions

Applications Accepted Over-the-Counter with Rolling Awards               

HOME Investment Partnerships Program (2024)

HOME Tribal Program (2025)

HOME Tribal Program (2024)

CDBG

Last Update January 2022

https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/homekey-plus
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/homekey-plus
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/homekey-plus
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/homekey-plus
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/affordable-housing-and-sustainable-communities
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/supernofa
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/supernofa
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/supernofa
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/supernofa
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeownership-super-nofa
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/local-housing-trust-fund
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/permanent-local-housing-allocation
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/permanent-local-housing-allocation
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/prohousing-incentive-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/no-place-like-home-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/portfolio-reinvestment-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/homekey
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/homekey/tribal-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/transitional-age-youth-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeless-housing-assistance-and-prevention-grant-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/tribal-homeless-housing-assistance-and-prevention-grants-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/encampment-resolution-funding-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/manufactured-housing-opportunity-and-revitalization-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/accelerator
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/pet-assistance-and-support-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/excess-sites-local-government-matching-grants
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/regional-early-action-planning-grants-of-2019
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/regional-early-action-planning-grants-of-2019
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/regional-early-action-planning-grants-of-2019
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/community-development-block-grant
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/home-investment-partnerships-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/home-investment-partnerships-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/home-investment-partnerships-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/home-investment-partnerships-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/home-american-rescue-plan-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/esg.shtml
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/national-housing-trust-fund-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/disaster-recovery-and-mitigation/dr-multifamily-housing-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/disaster-recovery-and-mitigation/dr-multifamily-housing-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/disaster-recovery-and-mitigation/mitigation-planning-and-public-services
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/disaster-recovery-and-mitigation/mitigation-planning-and-public-services
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/recoverca/program-resources
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/recoverca/program-resources
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/prohousing-incentive-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/permanent-local-housing-allocation
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/permanent-local-housing-allocation
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/homekey-plus
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/supernofa
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/no-place-like-home-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/disaster-recovery-and-mitigation/mitigation-planning-and-public-services
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeownership-super-nofa
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/recoverca/program-resources
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/disaster-recovery-and-mitigation/dr-multifamily-housing-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/home-investment-partnerships-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/regional-early-action-planning-grants-of-2019
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/homeless-housing-assistance-and-prevention-grant-program
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-and-funding/programs-active/community-development-block-grant


1 

Emergency Solutions Grants 
Program Guidelines 

Gavin Newsom, Governor 
State of California 

Tomiquia Moss, Secretary 
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency 

Gustavo Velasquez, Director 
California Department of Housing and Community Development 

Division of Financial Assistance, Federal Programs Branch 
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 

651 Bannon Street, Sacramento CA 95811 

December 10, 2024 



2 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Article I. General  ........................................................................................................................ 4 
§ 100. General .......................................................................................................................... 4 
§ 101. Primary Objectives ....................................................................................................... 4 
§ 102. Definitions ..................................................................................................................... 5 
§ 103. Program and Administrative Requirements .............................................................. 9 
§ 104. Nondiscrimination ........................................................................................................ 9 

Article 2. Method of Distribution ............................................................................................. 10 
§ 200. Allocations .................................................................................................................. 10 
§ 201. Eligible Components and Activities ......................................................................... 11 
§ 202. Eligible Applicants/Organizations ............................................................................ 12 
§ 203. Notice of Funding Availability ................................................................................... 14 
§ 204. Special Disaster or Emergency Supplemental Assistance NOFAs ....................... 15 
§ 205. Contents of the Application ...................................................................................... 17 
§ 206. Evaluation Criteria ...................................................................................................... 19 
§ 207. Award of Funds .......................................................................................................... 19 
§ 208. Indirect Costs ............................................................................................................. 20 
§ 209. Match ........................................................................................................................... 20 
§ 210. Match Exemption Competition .................................................................................. 21 
§ 211. Administrative Cost Limitation ................................................................................. 21 
§ 212. Advanced Payments .................................................................................................. 22 

Article 3. Grant Administration ................................................................................................ 22 
§ 300. Standard Agreements ................................................................................................ 22 
§ 301.  Procurement of Equipment, Goods and Services .................................................. 24 
§ 302. Program Income ......................................................................................................... 25 
§ 303. Financial and Performance Reporting Requirements............................................. 26 
§ 304. Monitoring of Program Performance ........................................................................ 26 
§ 305. Grant Payment Requirements ................................................................................... 27 
§ 306. Revision Procedures .................................................................................................. 28 
§ 307. Closeout Procedures ................................................................................................. 29 
§ 308. Retention and Custodial Requirements for Records .............................................. 29 
§ 309. Insurance Coverage ................................................................................................... 30 
§ 310. Requirements for Real and Personal Property Acquired with Grant Funds ......... 30 



3 
 

§ 311. Debarment and Suspension ...................................................................................... 30 
§ 312. Audit Requirements ................................................................................................... 31 
§ 313. Conflicts of Interest .................................................................................................... 32 
§ 314. Sanctions .................................................................................................................... 32 
§ 315. False, Fictitious or Fraudulent Claims ..................................................................... 33 
§ 316. Cancellations and Defaults ....................................................................................... 34 
§ 317. Housing First Practices ............................................................................................. 36 
§ 318. Other Federal and State Requirements .................................................................... 36 

Article 4. Appeals Process ....................................................................................................... 38 
§ 400. DFFA Competitive NOFAs Only Appeals ................................................................. 38 
§ 401. All DFFA Programs Any Request To Appeal ........................................................... 38 

 

 

 
  



4 
 

Article I. General  
 
§ 100. General 
 

(a) Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8, these 
Guidelines (Guidelines) are adopted with the purpose to administer ESG funds 
awarded after the effective date of December 10, 2024 and establish procedures 
for the State of California (“State”) administration of federal funds from the 
Emergency Solutions Grants Program (the “ESG” or “ESG program”) and 
establish policies and procedures for use of these funds to meet the purposes 
contained in Title IV of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 
11371-11378), as amended by S.896  (HEARTH) Act of 2009 (103-105 and 401-
418) (in whole referred to as the “Act”). 
 

(b) These Guidelines are intended to be updated as necessary to address changes 
in State and federal statutes and federal regulations regarding the ESG program. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 101. Primary Objectives 
 

(a) The Act, and any amendments thereto, provide for State administration of the 
ESG program. These Guidelines set forth policies and procedures governing the 
administration of these funds within the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (the “Department”). In addition to these Guidelines, 
ESG program participants will comply with the federal regulations applicable to 
the ESG program as indicated below and as set forth in 24 C.F.R. Part 58 and 24 
C.F.R. Part 576. The Department’s ESG awards and the Subrecipients of those 
awards, including Unit of General Purpose Local Government and Private 
Nonprofit Organizations, are subject to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for federal Awards at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 
In the event that any federal or State laws, regulations, or State Guidelines, 
including without limitation regulations by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (“HUD”), add, delete, modify, or otherwise change any 
statutory or regulatory requirements concerning the use or administration of 
these funds, ESG program participants must comply with such requirements, as 
amended. 
 

(b) Projects are required to adhere to all applicable California State law (“State 
Law”), federal law, regulations, and Guidelines which include but are not limited 
to the ESG federal regulations (24 C.F.R. Part 576) and the Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
federal Awards (2 C.F.R. Part 200). Elements of these requirements are 
incorporated into these Guidelines; however, Contractors are strongly 



5 
 

encouraged to independently review all applicable requirements independent of 
this document. 
 

(c) In the event of a conflict between the State ESG Guidelines and 24 C.F.R. Part 
58, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, or the federal ESG regulations at 24 C.F.R. Part 576, the 
federal regulations shall prevail. See Health and Safety Code 50406(n). See also 
42 U.S.C. 11371-11378 (103-105 and 401-418), 24 C.F.R. Part 58, 2 C.F.R. Part 
200, and 24 C.F.R. Part 576. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50406(n), and 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 102. Definitions 
 

In addition to the definitions found in 42 U.S.C. 11371 (2011) and 24 C.F.R. § 576.2 and 
91, the following definitions apply to these Guidelines. 

(a) “Annual Action Plan” or (AAP) means a concise summary of the actions, 
activities, and the specific federal and non-federal resources that will be used 
each year to address the priority needs and specific goals identified by the 
Consolidated Plan. 
 

(b) "Annual Funding Cycle” means the annual process where the Department 
prepares and submits to HUD the Department’s Annual Action Plan which 
describes the method for distributing funds to Eligible Organizations. After HUD 
approval, HUD issues a grant agreement to the Department to fund the activities 
described in the Annual Action Plan. 

 

(c) “Annual Performance Report” means a report prescribed by HUD for all 
jurisdictions receiving funding under the ESG program provided in 24 C.F.R. Part 
576, that includes the number of persons helped, the types of help provided, and 
the project or program outcomes data measured under the performance 
standards developed in consultation with the Continuum(s) of Care. 
 

(d) “Applicant” means an Eligible Organization that applies to receive ESG funds 
from the Department. 
 

(e) “Application” means a Contractor’s ESG application submitted in response to an    
ESG NOFA.  
 

(f) “Board of Directors” means a group of individuals who are elected to govern and 
oversee the nonprofit organization's operations. The board is responsible for 



6 
 

setting the organization's mission, strategy, and goals, and ensuring that the 
organization operates in compliance with legal and ethical standards. 

 
(g) “Build America, Buy America (BABA)” means the Contractor must comply with 

the requirements of the Build America, Buy America (BABA) Act, 41 U.S.C. 8301 
and all applicable rules and notices, as may be amended, if applicable to the 
Grantee’s infrastructure project. Pursuant to HUD’s Notice, “Public Interest 
Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and 2023 of Build America, Buy 
America Provisions as Applied to Recipients of HUD federal financial assistance” 
(88 FR 17001), any funds obligated by HUD on or after the applicable listed 
effective dates are subject to BABA requirements, unless exempted by a waiver.  
 

(h) “Continuum of Care” or (CoC) means the group composed of representatives of 
relevant organizations, which generally includes nonprofit homeless providers; 
victim Service Providers; faith-based organizations; governments; businesses; 
advocates; public housing agencies; school districts; social Service Providers; 
mental health agencies; hospitals; universities; affordable housing developers; 
law enforcement; organizations that serve homeless and formerly homeless 
veterans, and homeless and formerly homeless persons that are organized to 
plan for and provide, as necessary, a system of outreach, engagement, and 
assessment; emergency shelter; rapid re-housing; transitional housing; 
permanent housing; and prevention strategies to address the various needs of 
homeless persons and persons at risk of homelessness for a specific geographic 
area. 
 

(i) “Continuum of Care Service Area” means the entire geographic area within the 
boundaries of an Eligible Continuum of Care. 

 
(j) “Contract” means the contract entered into by the Department and the ESG 

Subrecipient (also known as Contractor) setting forth the basic terms and 
conditions governing the awards of ESG funds. 
 

(k) “Contractor” means a Subrecipient that enters into a Standard Agreement (STD 
213) with the Department for ESG funds and becomes a federally defined 
Contractor under 24 C.F.R. § 576.2 Definitions, see 2 C.F.R. § 200.1, but not a 
federally defined Contractor under 2 C.F.R. § 200.331. Subrecipient is often used 
synonymously with Contractor. 
 

(l) “Department” means the California Department of Housing and Community     
Development. 
 

(m) “Eligible Activities” means those activities upon which ESG funds may be 
expended as defined under 24 C.F.R. Part 576 Subpart B. 



7 
 

 
(n)  “Eligible Continuum of Care” means a Continuum of Care in the State that has 

within its Service Area at least one Nonentitlement Area.  
 
(o) “Eligible Organization” means a Private Nonprofit Organization or a Unit of 

General Purpose Local Government that provides, or contracts with, Private 
Nonprofit Organizations to provide Eligible Activities. 

 
(p)  “ESG” is the acronym for the Emergency Solutions Grants program. 

 
(q)  “ESG Entitlement” means a Unit of General Purpose Local Government  

  that meets one of the following:  
 

(1) is a Metropolitan City or Urban County as defined under 42 U.S.C. 5302 
that receives an allocation of ESG funds directly from HUD;  
 

(2) is in a Nonentitlement Area that has entered into an agreement with an 
Urban County to participate in that locality’s ESG program; or 
 

(3) is a Metropolitan City or Urban County that have entered into a joint 
agreement with one another to receive and administer a combined direct 
allocation of ESG funds from HUD. 

 
(r) “ESG Entitlement Area” or “Entitlement Area” means the geography within an 

ESG Entitlement’s boundaries. 
 
(s) “ESG Nonentitlement” means a Unit of General Purpose Local Government that 

does not receive ESG funding directly from HUD and is not participating as an 
ESG Entitlement Area. 

 
(t) “ESG Nonentitlement Area” means the geography within an ESG 

Nonentitlement’s boundaries. 
 
(u) “Expenditure Milestone(s)” means the percentage of the award, that is identified 

in the Standard Agreement, that must be expended by a specified time period.   
 
(v) “Governing Board” means Board of Supervisors for a County Applicant and 

means City Council for a City Applicant. 
 
(w) “HUD” means the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 
(x)  “Notice of Funding Availability” (NOFA) refers to a process that informs the 

public that funding is available for a specific purpose and can be requested 
through an application process.   
 



8 
 

(y) “Nonentitlement Area” means an area which is not a metropolitan city or part of 
an Urban County and does not include Indian tribes. 42 U.S.C. 5302(7). 
 

(z) “Project Description” includes specific location, purpose (provide housing, 
support services, etc.), number and type of beneficiaries/units, any proposed 
changes to structures and/or land, and use of funds.  
 

(aa) “Request for Funds (RFF)” means a request for reimbursement by a 
Subrecipient for Eligible Expenses on forms provided by the Department. 

 
(bb)   “Service Area” has the same meaning as the term “Continuum of Care Service          

Area.”       
 
(cc)   “Service Providers” refers to the “Continuum of Care” definition found at 24 

C.F.R. § 576.2. 
 

(dd) “Site” means one or more facilities where the program(s) is being carried out. 
 

(ee) “Site Control” means the legal right to occupy and use the Site, as evidenced 
     by such things as: 

 
(1) A deed demonstrating ownership in fee title; 

 
(2) a lease demonstrating a leasehold interest in the Site and its 

improvements for at least the term of the ESG grant; 
 

(3) an enforceable option to purchase or lease a Site provided that such 
option will be for at least the term of the ESG grant; or 

 
(4) for rotating shelter programs, Site Control may include other evidence 

provided by the Applicant granting permission to use the Site(s). Such 
evidence must be approved by the Department in writing before the 
deadline for submission of the ESG applications stated in the applicable 
NOFA. 

 
(ff) “Standard Agreement” means the contract entered into by the Department 

and the Contractor (also known as Subrecipient) setting forth the basic terms 
and conditions governing the awards of ESG funds. 
 

(gg) “Subrecipient” means an entity that enters into a Standard Agreement with the 
Department for a General Purpose Local Government or Private Nonprofit 
Organization to which a recipient makes available ESG funds as defined in 24 
C.F.R. § 576.2. Throughout these Guidelines, Subrecipient is also referred to 
as Contractor. 

 



9 
 

(hh) “Subcontractor” means an entity that is performing work as shown under 24 
C.F.R. § 576.100(A) and as described in Exhibit A of the Standard Agreement, 
ESG funds for a Contractor or Service Provider. 

  
(ii) “Written Standards” are defined in 24 C.F.R. § 576.400(e). 

 
NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 103. Program and Administrative Requirements 
 

(a) All Department program administrators, Applicants, and Contractors must adhere 
to all federal program statutes, federal regulations, Federal Register notices, 
HUD guidance notices and policy memoranda, Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Audit 
Requirements for federal awards, the Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Real Property Acquisition Act, California Relocation Assistance Law, and all 
State and federal nondiscrimination and fair housing requirements. Additionally, 
Department program administrators, Applicants, and Contractors must adhere to 
all California State Administrative Manual requirements, regulations, State 
statutes, award letters, Standard Agreements, and these Guidelines; and all 
State and federal requirements to affirmatively furthering fair housing, including 
without limitation, compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws as referenced 
in 24 C.F.R. Parts 1, 91, 92, and 576.  
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

      
§ 104. Nondiscrimination 
 

(a) The Department prohibits discrimination on the basis of Age, Ancestry, Arbitrary 
Characteristics, Caste, Citizenship, Color, Disability, Ethnicity, Familial Status, 
Gender, Gender Expression, Gender Identity, Genetic Information, Immigration 
Status (except where explicitly prohibited by federal law), Marital Status, Medical 
Condition, Military Status, Nationality, Primary Language, Race, Religion, 
Religious Creed, Sex, Sexual Orientation, Sex Stereotype, Source of Income, 
Veteran Status, and all other classes of individuals protected from discrimination 
under federal or State fair housing laws. 
 

(b) Individuals perceived to be a member of any of the preceding classes must not 
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with ESG 
funds made available pursuant to these Guidelines.   
 



10 
 

(c) All Contractors and Subcontractors shall comply with the requirements contained 
in 24 C.F.R. § 5.105(a); as well as the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Fair 
Housing Amendments Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the 
Unruh Act, G.C. 11135, 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and regulations 
disseminated pursuant to those statutes, including 24 C.F.R. Part 100, 24 C.F.R. 
Part 8, and 28 C.F.R. Part 35, in all of the Contractor’s activities. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

Article 2. Method of Distribution 
 

§ 200. Allocations 
 

(a) The Department shall distribute the ESG annual funding based on a formula 
allocation and/or performance outcomes by accessing Homeless Management 
Information System (HMIS) data via the State Homeless Data Integration 
System (HDIS), including, but not limited to, “exits to permanent housing.” The 
Department shall update the distribution method in the AAP and the NOFA. 
 

(b) The amount of funds available for the Continuum of Care Service Area will be 
based on the amount of ESG funds made available to the Department through 
a grant agreement from HUD in any given year using the following formula 
factors adjusted biennially using the most recent data available reflecting the 
total population of the ESG Nonentitlement Areas within each Continuum of 
Care Service Area as published by the Census Bureau: 

 
(1) The number of extremely low-income renter households within the ESG 

Nonentitlement Areas of each Continuum of Care Service Area that are 
paying more than 50 percent of their income for rent using HUD’s 
Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy data set; 

 
(2) The number of persons below the federal poverty line within the ESG 

Nonentitlement Areas of each Continuum of Care Service Area divided by 
the total population within the ESG Nonentitlement Areas of each 
Continuum of Care Service Area. This factor will be double-weighted. Data 
for these factors will be obtained from the Census Bureau; and  
 

(3) Notwithstanding subsections (1) through (2) above, the Department may 
occasionally adjust the weighting of these factors and sources of 
information to reflect changes in the availability of data sources and to use 
the best information available. Any changes to the factors or weighting of 



11 
 

the formula will be proposed in the AAP pursuant to 24 C.F.R. Part 91 and 
reflected in the NOFA. 

 
(c) The amount of funds available to a Service Area under the formula may be 

capped in order to achieve a greater geographic balance of the funds among all 
eligible Continuums of Care in the State. Any cap on amounts available under 
the formula will be proposed in the AAP and NOFA.  
 

(d) The Department will accept and use an amount of the State’s annual allocation 
of ESG funds for Administrative Activities not to exceed the amount permitted 
under 24 C.F.R. § 576.100 (c). Pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 576.108 (b), a portion 
of this amount will be shared with ESG Contractors that are Units of General 
Purpose Local Government. The amounts available for Administrative Activities 
will be announced in the AAP and NOFA. 

 
(e) Penalty for not expending 100 percent of a prior ESG grant: 

 
(1) Contractors that do not expend their entire ESG grant award by the 

expenditure deadline, as identified in the Standard Agreement, will not be 
allowed to apply for future funding for the next two Annual Funding Cycles. 
The Department reserves the right to review the penalty on a case-by-case 
basis and make a final determination on future funding at the Department’s 
sole discretion. If the penalty is upheld, the CoC may select another 
Applicant. Refer to Section 202(b) of these Guidelines. This penalty may be 
reconsidered in the event of an emergency or declared disaster as outlined 
in Section 204 of these Guidelines.  
 

(2) If the Department, the State Attorney General, HUD, or the Federal Office of 
Inspector General determines that fraud has been committed by a 
Contractor and/or its organization, they will not be allowed to apply for future 
funding for at least the next three Annual Funding Cycles. If the penalty is 
upheld, the CoC may select another Applicant. Refer to Section 202(b) of 
these Guidelines.   
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 201. Eligible Components and Activities 
 

(a) ESG funds may be used for five program components: Street Outreach, 
Emergency Shelter, Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Rehousing, and Homeless 
Management Information Systems (HMIS), as well as Administrative Activities. 
The five program components and the Eligible Activities that may be funded 
under each are set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 576.101 through 24 C.F.R. § 576.107. 
Eligible Administrative Activities are set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 576.108. 



12 
 

 
(b) A percentage of all Contractor’s budgets must include the Rapid Rehousing 

component. The Department may adjust these percentages from time to time. 
Any adjustment will be announced in the AAP and/or NOFA. 
 

(c) Homelessness Prevention will be limited to no more than 10 percent of any 
awarded contract/budget and will not be awarded as a standalone activity. The 
Department may adjust these percentages from time to time. Any adjustment will 
be announced in the AAP and/or NOFA. 
 

(d) ESG Shelter Operations funds may be used for maintenance activities that do 
not materially add to the value of the building/property; do not appreciably 
prolong the useful life of the building/property; and do not adapt the 
building/property to new uses. Examples of maintenance activities could include 
activities such as: replacing a few shingles on a leaky roof; patching leaking 
pipes or plumbing; replacing a broken window; fixing a crack in a sidewalk; and 
filling potholes in a parking lot.  
 
For more detailed information on levels of environmental review based on 
activity, visit: https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Levels-of-
Environmental-Review-for-ESG-Components-Matrix.pdf  
 

(e) The requirements of the Build America, Buy America Act (BABA) may apply to 
minor repairs. Additional information regarding the implementation of BABA, as 
applicable, will be provided in the annual NOFA. 
 

(f) Contractors and Subcontractors must comply with the shelter and housing 
standards cited in 24 C.F.R. § 576.403 and other HUD habitability and housing 
standard requirements. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 202. Eligible Applicants/Organizations 

(a) An Eligible Applicant/organization means a Private Nonprofit Organization or a 
Unit of General Purpose Local Government that provides or contracts with 
Private Nonprofit Organizations to provide Eligible Activities, as defined in 24 
C.F.R. § 576.2. 
 
The Applicant shall meet the following requirements when its application is 
submitted: 
 

(1) The Applicant must show to the satisfaction of the Department that it is in 
compliance with the Single Audit requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.50;  

https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Levels-of-Environmental-Review-for-ESG-Components-Matrix.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Levels-of-Environmental-Review-for-ESG-Components-Matrix.pdf


13 
 

(2) The Applicant must be in good standing with the Department, as defined 
in the NOFA, and in compliance with all applicable law; and 

 
(3) Applicants must provide a Certificate of Good Standing from the California 

Secretary of State’s office and a copy of their most recent filed Internal 
Revenue Service Form 990.  

(b) Applicant Selection 
 

(1) The Continuum of Care may select up to two Eligible Applicants to apply 
for funding in any given year. The selection process used by the 
Continuum of Care must include, at a minimum, the following: 
 
a. In making this selection, the Continuum of Care shall use a process 

which is fair, equitable, and open and avoids conflicts of interest in 
project selection, implementation, and administration of funds; 
 

b. Incorporate reasonable performance standards as set forth in the AAP 
based on HUD requirements and guidance. If the Applicant has not 
implemented the proposed activity or similar activity within the past 
three years, the Continuum of Care shall work with the funded 
Applicant to ensure it meets reasonable performance standards 
specified in the AAP in the contract year; 
 

c. The Applicant and/or Service Provider must develop complete policies 
and procedures that meet HUD’s, the Department’s, and the CoC’s 
requirements. The CoC must review and approve the policies and 
procedures before the Contractors and/or Service Provider can begin 
administering any ESG Eligible Activity. 
 

d. Comply with federal regulations and these Guidelines. 

(c) The Department reserves the right to approve Applicants the Continuum of Care 
has recommended. If the Department does not approve an Applicant, the 
Department must communicate to the Continuum of Care the reason for the 
denial in writing within 30 business days from the closing date of the application 
period.   
 

(1) Criteria for denial of an Applicant: 
 
a. Applicant is not in good standing with the Department; 

 
b. Applicant has unresolved findings with the Department, HUD, or a 

Single Audit; 
 



14 
 

c. Applicant has not met Expenditure Milestones in the prior two Annual 
Funding Cycles; or 
 

d. Applicant has an outstanding financial obligation to the Department 
and is not meeting repayment terms, if applicable. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 203. Notice of Funding Availability 
 

(a) A NOFA will be issued every third Annual Funding Cycle. This means that each 
NOFA and subsequent awards will be encumbered and evidenced by a multiple 
year Standard Agreement, where Applicants may apply for more funds on the 
third year. 
 

(b) Funding will be based on the actual amount of ESG funds made available to the 
Department through a grant agreement from HUD in any given year using the 
formula allocation set forth in Section 200 of these Guidelines. 
 

(c) The Department reserves the right to issue one or more NOFAs as needed, and 
to subsequently amend, supplement, or rescind any such NOFA in its discretion. 
 

(d) The Department will notify all eligible Applicants of the anticipated level of 
funding for the program in the AAP and will provide them with a schedule of filing 
applications as indicated in the NOFA. 
 

(e) The NOFA will specify, among other things, the amount of funds available, 
eligible components and activities, the time frame for submittal of applications, 
the application requirements pursuant to Section 203 of these Guidelines, 
formula allocation and/or performance outcomes pursuant to the AAP, the 
matching contribution requirements pursuant to Section 209 of these Guidelines, 
any prohibitions of use of funds, the availability of administrative funds, and the 
general terms and conditions of funding allocations. 
 

(f) Applications must be received by the closing date and time identified in the 
NOFA. In order to comply with any set-aside or special allocation established by 
HUD or the Department, the Department may do one or more of the following: 
 

(1) Issue a special NOFA. 
 

(2) Specify in each NOFA the reservation of a portion of the funds for various 
set-asides or special allocations.  

 



15 
 

(3) Specify in each NOFA any waivers to requirements granted by HUD or the 
Department in connection with the funds. 

 
(4) Deadline for filing of applications to be reviewed and approved by the 

Department, timeframes for review and funding of all applications. 
 

(5) General terms and conditions of funding allocations set forth in 24 C.F.R. 
§ 91.320. 
 

(g) For funding years when a NOFA is not issued, a new application will not be 
required. The Department will notify the Contractor with active contracts in good 
standing: 

 
(1) Their annual funding allocation amount; 

 
(2) Request a Budget Revision;  

 
(3) Request a signed certification from the Authorized Signor identified in the 

Resolution of any changes; 
 

(4) Issue an award letter; 
 

(5) Amend the Standard Agreement to reflect the adjusted funding. 
 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 204. Special Disaster or Emergency Supplemental Assistance NOFAs 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any provision in these Guidelines to the contrary, in the event of 
a special appropriation of emergency supplemental assistance or a presidential 
declaration of disaster, or the Governor proclaims either a “state of war,” “state of 
emergency,” or a “local emergency,” as those terms are defined in Government 
Code 8558(a-c), the Department Director, with the prior consent of the Governor 
pursuant to Gov. Code 8571, may suspend part of the ESG program Guidelines 
(pursuant to Government Code 8571 - Suspension of statutes, orders, rules and 
regulations: “During a state of war emergency or a state of emergency the 
Governor may suspend...any rules, or regulations of any State agency...where 
the Governor determines and declares that strict compliance with any statute, 
order, rule, or regulation would in any way prevent, hinder, or delay the mitigation 
of the effects of the emergency”) in order to expedite the emergency federal 
funding. The special NOFA will make ESG program funds available to Eligible 



16 
 

State Applicants located in the areas covered by the federal or State disaster or 
emergency proclamation pursuant to the following special conditions:  
 

(1) The project or activity shall be designed to alleviate or mitigate existing 
conditions that pose a serious actual, or impending, threat to the health or 
welfare of the community; 
 

(2) The Department will review eligibility documentation for each proposed 
activity to ensure there is no duplication of eligible costs. 
 

(b) The proposed project or activity shall be otherwise eligible for funding under 
these Guidelines or be eligible pursuant to other HUD eligibility criteria. In order 
to address the most serious emergent health, safety, and general welfare needs, 
the Director may direct funding awards to a designated project(s) or activity 
type(s) or area(s). These measures may include, but are not limited to:  

 
(1) Limiting a NOFA to a designated type of project, activity, or geographic 

area related to the federal or State disaster or emergency proclamation; 
 

(2) Awarding bonus points within a NOFA to a designated type of project, 
activity, or geographic area; 

 
(3) Reserving a portion of funds in a NOFA for a designated type of project, 

activity, or geographic area;  
 

(4) Establishing maximum award amounts per Applicant, type of project, or 
type of activity; and 

 
(5) Making funds available through an Over-The-Counter (OTC) process, 

meaning the Department continuously accepts and evaluates applications 
until funds are exhausted.  

 
(c) To the extent necessary to address serious emergent health, safety, and general 

welfare needs, and to expedite the process of making awards, the Department 
Director, with the prior consent of the Governor, may alter or suspend State-
required criteria set forth in the NOFA in accordance with Gov. Code 8571. 
Federal requirements cannot be waived without express written authority from 
HUD. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8. Government 
Code 8558(a-c) and 8571 

 



17 
 

§ 205. Contents of the Application  
 

(a) Applications must be submitted on the current State online application portal and 
must be the prescribed forms and consist of the items identified in the NOFA, 
and any other information deemed necessary by the Department, to evaluate the 
application. This information provides the basis for the assessment identified in 
the NOFA and includes the assurances and agreements necessary for 
compliance with these Guidelines, 24 C.F.R. Part 576, and 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 
 

(b) Threshold Requirements 
 

(1) Authorizing Board of Supervisors Resolution 
 

a. The application must include an Authorizing Resolution (“AR”) completed 
utilizing the Department’s resolution template and approved by the 
Applicant’s Governing Board. The AR must designate a person or persons 
responsible for, and authorized to, execute all documents related to the 
application of ESG funds, and if awarded, the execution of a Standard 
Agreement with the Department and submittal of funds requests.  
 

b. If a Governing Board must prepare a separate resolution concurrently that 
conforms to its local standard, it may do so in addition to preparing the AR 
form approved by the Department. However, failure to provide an 
acceptable Department-approved resolution by the applicable application 
deadline outlined in the NOFA may result in a disqualification in executing 
the Standard Agreement. 
 

(2)  Authorized Signatory for Contracts Involving City Contractors 
 

a. General: Pursuant to Government Code 40601 and 40602, the mayor or 
mayor pro tempore must sign all written contracts and conveyances made 
or entered into by the city, unless the city has an ordinance in effect that 
specifically allows contracts to be signed by an officer other than the mayor 
or mayor pro tempore. 

 
b. No Ordinance: Accordingly, if the city does not have a city ordinance 

described above, then the Department requires that the mayor or mayor 
pro tempore sign any contract and or conveyances made or entered into by 
the city as the authorized signer for the city with the Department. The City 
Contractor will be required to provide to the Department a resolution from 
the City Council authorizing the mayor to sign Standard Agreements or any 
other required documents.   

 
c. Delegation: The mayor or mayor pro tempore may not delegate to a third 

party his or her authority to sign documents under this provision unless 



18 
 

there is an ordinance in effect that expressly authorizes such delegation 
and a duly authorized resolution reflecting such delegation is provided to 
the Department.   

 
d. With Ordinance: If the city does have an ordinance as described above, 

the Department requires the city to provide a copy of such ordinance and 
meet all other requirements of Section 205 (b)(2) of these Guidelines. 
 

(3) Financial Management 
 

a. All Applicants must show to the satisfaction of the Department that the 
following financial management requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200 have 
been met: 

 
b. The Applicant must provide the Department with its most recent Single 

Audit (as submitted to the State Controller’s Office), if applicable. 
 

If the Applicant has any open Single Audit findings and does not have a plan 
or an agreement to remediate those findings, the Applicant will be deemed 
ineligible for funding through the State ESG program until the findings are 
resolved or a remediation plan or agreement is established. 
 

c. The most recent year’s filed Internal Revenue Service Form 990.  
 

(4) Applicants must have identified dollar-for-dollar match for the federal ESG 
funding with funds from other public or private sources as set forth in 24 
C.F.R. § 576.201. 

 
(5) Nonprofit Organization applications must contain the organization’s current 

bylaws and articles of incorporation. 
 

(6) Applicants must have adequate and documented Site Control for any 
application proposing an Emergency Shelter Activity as set forth in 24 C.F.R. 
§ 576.408. 

 
(7) Private Nonprofit Organizations proposing Emergency Shelter activities 

applications must include a Certification of Local Approval completed and 
signed by the city or county where the activity is located as set forth in 24 
C.F.R. § 576.202 (a)(2). 

 
(8) Environmental Review – Pursuant to 24 C.F.R. Part 58 Units of General 

Purpose Local Government must complete the appropriate level of 
environmental review and submit the review signed by the Certifying 
Officer of the jurisdiction along with all supporting documentation. Nonprofit 
Applicants must provide information to the Department necessary for the 



19 
 

Department to complete the environmental review. The NOFA will contain 
more information on what the Department will need.  

 
 NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 206. Evaluation Criteria  
 

(a) For those eligible applications received during the NOFA process, individual 
activity types will be evaluated according to criteria identified in the AAP and 
these Guidelines. 

 
(b) Applications will be evaluated based on criteria set forth in the ESG federal 

regulations, AAP, and these Guidelines. 
 

(c) For those eligible applications received in an OTC NOFA process, individual 
projects will be evaluated for funding on a first-come, first-served basis as set out 
in the AAP and NOFA.  

 
(d) Tiebreaker criteria and methodology will be specified in the AAP and NOFA.  

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 207. Award of Funds  
 

(a) ESG funds shall be disbursed pursuant to the terms of the Standard Agreement. 
 

(b) The Department will require the first RFF be submitted within 120 days from the 
date of Standard Agreement execution. Subsequent RFFs must be submitted no 
less than quarterly. Funds not drawn in a timely manner may be recaptured and 
reallocated as described in the Standard Agreement. All expenditures claimed in 
a request for disbursement must be eligible, reasonable, and be accompanied by 
detailed supporting documentation. 
 

(c) If a Contractor uses ESG funds for the costs of ineligible activities, the Contractor 
shall be required to reimburse these funds to the Department and shall be 
prohibited from receiving and/or applying to the Department for subsequent ESG 
funds until the Department is fully repaid. 

 
(d) Once the required level of environmental review is completed and approved, a 

Contractor may begin incurring eligible costs beginning with the date of their 
award letter. The Department will only reimburse the Contractor for eligible costs 
incurred and after all environmental review requirements have been met, and the 



20 
 

Standard Agreement has been executed by both the Contractor and the 
Department. Environmental review compliance shall include compliance with 24 
C.F.R. Part 58 and all applicable federal and State laws and requirements.  
 

(e) Contractors that do not expend their entire grant award by the expenditure date 
identified in the Standard Agreement will not be allowed to apply for future 
funding for the next two Annual Funding Cycles. If the penalty is upheld, the CoC 
may select another Applicant. Refer to Section 202(c) of these Guidelines. This 
penalty may be reconsidered by the Department, in its sole discretion, in the 
event of an emergency or declared disaster as outlined in Section 204 of these 
Guidelines. 
 

(f) Before reimbursement, Contractor must provide evidence that clients served 
have been entered into HMIS in accordance with HUD regulations. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 208. Indirect Costs 
 

(a) Contractors and Subcontractors must follow 24 C.F.R. § 576.109 when utilizing 
indirect costs in their awarded budgets. 

 
(b) ESG grant funds may be used to pay indirect costs in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 

Part 200 (E). 
 

(c) Indirect costs may be allocated to each Eligible Activity under 24 C.F.R. § 
576.101 through 24 C.F.R. § 576.108, so long as that allocation is consistent with 
2 C.F.R. Part 200 (E). 

 
(d) The indirect costs charged to an activity subject to an expenditure limit under 24 

C.F.R. § 576.100 must be added to the direct costs charged for that activity when 
determining the total costs subject to the expenditure limit. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 209. Match 
 

(a) Each ESG Contractor is required to provide matching funds equal to 100 percent 
of the ESG funds that the Department awards to them. Documentation of 
satisfactory match must be maintained pursuant to the requirements of 24 C.F.R. 
§ 576.201. 
 



21 
 

(b) Costs paid by Program Income shall count toward meeting the Contractor’s 
matching requirements, provided the costs are eligible and reasonable ESG 
costs that supplement the Contractor’s ESG program.  
 

(c)  Eligible Sources of Match  

Funds and contributions from any source other than the ESG program are 
eligible for use as match, including but not limited to other federal funds, 
local/State government funds, and private donations of cash, property, and 
labor, provided that they meet the following criteria: 

a. They meet the requirements under 2 C.F.R. § 200.306, excluding the 
expenditure limits in 24 C.F.R. § 576.100; 

 
b. The match source is not prohibited from matching the ESG program, HUD 

programs, or federal funds in general;  
 

c. The contribution would have been an allowable cost under the ESG 
program if paid for using ESG funds. 
 

(d) Contractors are required to provide match commitments as part of the grant 
execution process. Commitments must be made in writing and signed by an 
authorized signatory on agency letterhead. Commitments may not be conditioned 
on anything except the availability of ESG funds. 

 
(e) Contractors are required to document match internally as it is spent. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 210. Match Exemption Competition 
 

Pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 576.201, under each fiscal year’s (FY) annual ESG 
allocation, the Department is not required to match the first $100,000 allocated. 
The Department may pass this benefit to the Contractor or Contractors who are 
least able to provide match. The Department may conduct a match exemption 
competition to determine this match need. Each funding year’s match exemption 
competition will be identified in the AAP and/or NOFA. 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 
 

§ 211. Administrative Cost Limitation 
 



22 
 

If awarded, Contractors may expend a portion of their grant amount as identified in the 
Standard Agreement and AAP on “Administrative Activities” as defined at 24 C.F.R. § 
576.108.  

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 
 

§ 212. Advanced Payments 
 

(a) A Contractor may request an operating advance of $5,000.00 or 30-days working 
capital, whichever is greater. A request for an operating advance must be 
received by the Department within 60 days of the effective date of a Standard 
Agreement or as allowed by California legislation. To receive payment for the 
work performed, or to receive an operating advance, the Contractor must submit, 
on forms provided by the Department, a duly executed ESG RFF. All items 
eligible for reimbursement must be reasonable and of the type specified in 
Section 300(g) of these Guidelines.  
 

(b) The Department may authorize advance payments on ESG grants awarded in 
accordance with Health and Safety Code 50899.8 and Government Code 
11019.1. This advance payment pilot program shall remain in effect until July 1, 
2025. 

 
 
NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899. References Cited: 50899.1-7 
and 50899.8. Government Code 50899.8 and 11019.1. 

Article 3. Grant Administration 
 
§ 300. Standard Agreements 
 

(a) The Department shall enter into a written contract, known as the Standard 
Agreement, directly with the Contractor. 

 
(b) The Standard Agreement will generally be for a multiple year term.  

 
(c) The Standard Agreement will include a multiple year estimated amount of 

funding. This estimated amount of funding will be calculated using the committed 
amount the Department receives each Annual Funding Cycle through a grant 
agreement from HUD. If the project location changes at any time, a new 
environmental clearance may be required. 
 

(d) The Department will amend all active multiple year Standard Agreements using 
the formula allocation set forth in Section 200 of these Guidelines. The estimated 
amount of funding within each active Standard Agreement will be updated each 



23 
 

Annual Funding Cycle year when the Department receives its HUD grant 
agreement.   
 

(e) For funding years when a NOFA is not issued and for all multiple year Standard 
Agreements, the Department will notify the Contractor with active contracts: 
 

(1) Their annual funding allocation amount; 
 

(2) Request a Budget Revision;  
 

(3) Request a signed certification from the Authorized Signor identified in the 
Resolution of any changes; 
 

(4) Issue an award letter; 
 

(5) Amend the Standard Agreement to reflect the adjusted funding. Upon 
request, Contractors will have to provide the current Authorizing 
Resolution to the Department with the proposed amendment.  

 
(f) The Standard Agreement will require the Contractor to comply with the 

requirements and provisions of 24 C.F.R. Part 576, Health and Safety Code 
50899.1-50899.8, these regulations, and generally applicable State contracting 
rules and requirements.  

 
(g) The Standard Agreement will include, among other things, the items specified in 

this section: 
 

(1) The identification of the Contractor under contract with the Department;  
 
(2) The grant amount including budget details required for the Department to 

enter into HUD’s financial management system (“IDIS”); 
 
(3) An itemized list of eligible expenses as set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 576.101-

108, and the basis upon which payment is to be made submitted in 
compliance with the process through which the Contractor must request 
payment; 

 
(4) A statement of the activities and services the Contractor will perform and 

provide for; and 
 
(5) Timeframes for the performance of approved Eligible Activities as required 

pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 576.203. 
 

(h) The Department may approve changes to the Standard Agreement as described 
below: 



24 
 

 
(1) Contractor shall notify the Department of any line-item changes to the 

budget. 
 

(2) Line-item changes representing more than 25 percent of the overall 
budget will require Department approval and a Standard Agreement 
amendment.  

 
(i) The following performance requirements must appear in each Standard 

Agreement and include more provisions specific to each Contractor: 
 
(1) Reporting requirements pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 576.500. 

 
(2) Requirements for fiscal management in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting standards and federal fiscal requirements identified in 24 C.F.R. 
Part 200. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 301.  Procurement of Equipment, Goods and Services 

 
(a) When acquiring equipment, the Department and ESG Subrecipients are subject 

to all applicable federal requirements and State requirements, most importantly: 
 

(1) 24 C.F.R. § 576.407(c), which makes explicit that the ESG program is 
governed by the uniform requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200;  

 
(2) 24 C.F.R. § 576.407(f), which requires compliance with 6002 of the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, which includes a requirement that, when purchasing an 
item or set of items whose costs exceed $10,000 in a year, those items 
must be designated in the Guidelines of the Environmental Protection 
Agency at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of 
recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory 
level of competition; 

(3) 2 C.F.R. § 200.317-326, which outline general procurement 
standards, including standards applicable for states and State 
entities (e.g., the Department).  
 

(4) Before the drawdown of ESG funds for the Contractor’s purchase of 
equipment, goods, or services, the Contractor must provide the 



25 
 

Department with evidence of compliance with these requirements, 
as applicable. 

 

(b) Equipment purchased using ESG funds must continue to be used by the 
purchasing entity to support the activities for which it was originally purchased, 
regardless of whether those activities continue to receive ESG or any other 
federal funding. The purchasing entity cannot encumber the equipment before 
the approval of the Department and HUD. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 302. Program Income 
 

(a) Program Income has the same meaning provided in 2 C.F.R. § 200.307. Under 
24 C.F.R. § 576.2, Program Income includes any amount of a security or utility 
deposit returned to the Department or Contractor. 

 

(b) The Department recommends that Subrecipients develop policies and 
procedures that, to the maximum extent possible, prevent the generation of 
Program Income. For example: The Department encourages Contractors to 
adopt ESG-HP and ESG-RRH as defined in 24 C.F.R. § 576.103 and 576.104, 
policies and procedures that require security deposits paid for by grant funds to 
be disbursed directly to the participant by the landlord when the participant exits 
their project subsidized unit to enable the participant to obtain another unit.  

 
(c) Expenditure of Program Income that is generated must:  

 
(1) Be approved by the Department prior to the expenditure by the Contractor; 

and, 
(2) Be expended within the contract year during which it was generated. 

 
(d) Costs paid by Program Income shall count toward meeting the Contractor’s  

matching requirements, provided the costs are eligible ESG costs that 
supplement the Contractor’s ESG program. 

 
(e) Contractors are required to maintain records of their receipt and use of Program 

Income. These records must be kept in accordance with the financial records 
requirements in 24 C.F.R. § 576.500(u).  

 
(f) Program Income must be tracked separately from grant funds to ensure 

Contractors can show that Program Income was spent in accordance with this 
policy. 



26 
 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 303. Financial and Performance Reporting Requirements 
 

(a) Contractors must follow the recordkeeping and reporting requirements found in  
24 C.F.R. § 576.500. The Contractor must have policies and procedures and a 
financial management system that complies with the requirements of this part, 
including those required by 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

 
(b) Private Nonprofit Organizations must submit audits to the Department for review 

and approval. These audits must comply with all applicable federal laws, including, 
24 C.F.R. § 576.500 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.501. and 2 C.F.R. Part 200. 

(c) Units of General Purpose Local Government must submit audits to the Department 
for review and approval. These audits must comply with all applicable federal and 
other laws.  

(d) The Department may also periodically request that a Contractor or its Service 
Provider be audited at the expense of the Contractor. Failure to provide the audit 
within 90 days of the request may result in ineligibility for future funding. 

(e) The Department will require evidence that a Single Audit has been performed for 
all Applicants applying for ESG funds, if applicable, pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.501 
and that there are no unresolved findings contained therein. 
 

(f) Contractor’s that do not submit their Annual Performance Reports (APRs) by the 
due date will not receive funding for the next two Annual Funding Cycles.  

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 304. Monitoring of Program Performance  
 

(a) Contractors shall monitor the activities selected and awarded by them to Service 
Providers to ensure compliance with federal and State ESG requirements. An 
onsite monitoring visit of selected Service Providers shall occur whenever 
determined necessary by the Contractor, but at least once during the grant 
period pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 576.500, 2 C.F.R. § 200.501 and 2 C.F.R. § 
200.329. The Department reserves the right to conduct their own monitoring and 
inspection of both the Contractor and their Service Providers as set forth in 24 
C.F.R. § 576.500. 

 



27 
 

(b) The Department will monitor the performance of the Contractor based on a risk 
assessment.  

(c) In the event that project-level or system-wide performance consistently remains 
in the lowest quartile compared to all those participating in the allocation (CoC 
Service Area), the Department may work collaboratively with the Contractor to 
develop performance improvement plans which will be incorporated into an 
amended Standard Agreement.  

(d) If it is determined that a Contractor falsified any certification, application 
information, financial, or contract report, the Contractor shall be required to 
reimburse the full amount of the ESG award to the Department and may be 
prohibited from any further participation in the ESG program. The Department 
may also impose any other actions permitted under 24 C.F.R. § 576.501 (c) and 
State law.  

(e) As requested by the Department, the Contractor shall submit to the Department 
all ESG monitoring documentation necessary to ensure that the Contractor and 
its Service Providers are in continued compliance with all ESG requirements. 
Such documentation requirements and the submission deadline(s) shall be 
provided by the Department when the information is requested from the 
Contractor. 

(f) Contractor and its Service Providers shall timely cooperate with the Department 
and shall make available to the Department all information, documents, and 
records reasonably requested. Copies of these items will also be made available 
to the Department upon their request. Service Providers shall provide the 
Department the reasonable right of access to the Site during normal business 
hours for the purpose of assuring compliance with this Agreement and evaluating 
the Service Provider’s performance.  

 
NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 305. Grant Payment Requirements  
 

(a) The first RFF must be submitted within 120 days from the effective date of the 
Agreement. Contractors are encouraged to submit an RFF monthly and must 
submit an RFF quarterly until all funds have been expended or returned to the 
Department. If this expenditure requirement is not met, the Department reserves 
the right to mandate a remediation plan to ensure future timely expenditure of 
ESG funds as set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 576.203. 

 
(b) Contractor agrees to provide documentation satisfactory to the Department 

evidencing the obligation of ESG funds within 120 days from the date the 
Department made grant funds available to the Contractor as set forth in 24 



28 
 

C.F.R. § 576.203. If the Contractor fails to provide such documentation, the 
Department may disencumber any portion of the amount authorized by the 
Standard Agreement. 
 

(c) Expenditure Milestones are the percentage of the award that must be expended 
by a specified time period and identified in each Standard Agreement.   
 

(1) Failure to meet the Expenditure Milestone(s) identified in the Standard 
Agreement will result in the Department disencumbering the amount 
identified in the Standard Agreement; and 

 
(2) Contractors that do not meet the Expenditure Milestones identified in the 

Standard Agreement will be disqualified from future funding for two Annual 
Funding Cycles.  

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 306. Revision Procedures 
 

(a) The Department, in its discretion, may approve changes to the Standard 
Agreement as described below.  

(1) A Contractor must notify the Department regarding their intent to change the 
funded Service Provider. The Contractor will need to provide the Department 
with the signed Subcontractor agreement as well as evidence that the new 
Subcontractor is not debarred. The Contractor must verify that the 
Subcontractor has policies and procedures in place that meet all CoC and 
Department requirements. A Contractor shall notify the Department of any 
line-item changes to the budget needed for the Department to update IDIS. 

(2) A Contractor may request budget line-item changes to their approved 
budgets. Line-item changes must be less than 25 percent of the awarded 
budget. Activities not awarded to the Contractor may not be added before 
Department approval. All changes must meet the requirements of these 
Guidelines. 

(3) A Contractor must request Department approval for all budget line-item 
changes representing more than 25 percent of the overall budget. If 
approved, a Standard Agreement amendment will be required.  

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 



29 
 

 
§ 307. Closeout Procedures 
 

(a) The grant closeout procedures include the following:  
 

(1) Contractor shall submit a final RFF, Detailed Expense Report (DER) and a 
Certification of Completion, in a manner and format approved by the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the expenditure deadline stated in 
the Standard Agreement. 

 
(2) Contractor shall refund to the Department any balance of unobligated 

cash advanced to the Contractor that is not authorized to be retained by 
the Contractor.  

 
(3) Within 60 days after the expenditure deadline identified in the Standard 

Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the Department with all financial, 
performance, and other reports required as a condition of the grant. 

 
(4) The Contractor shall account for any property acquired in whole or in part 

with grant funds in accordance with the provisions of Sections 309 and 
310 of these Guidelines, pertaining to property management, and Section 
302 of these Guidelines, pertaining to Program Income.  

 
(5) In the event a final audit or monitoring has not been performed before the 

closeout of the grant, the Department shall retain the right to recover the 
amount of disallowed costs after fully considering the recommendations of 
the final audit or monitoring. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 308. Retention and Custodial Requirements for Records  
 

(a) Contractor must follow all federal ESG regulations set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 
576.500. Contractor shall maintain all fiscal and program records pertaining to 
the ESG Grant for a period of five (5) years after the Department closes its HUD 
grant or any other period specified in 24 C.F.R. § 500 (y). 
 

(b) Contractor agrees to maintain accounting books and records in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, per 2 C.F.R. Part 200. Contractor 
agrees that the Department, the Department of General Services, the Bureau of 
State Audits, HUD, or their designated representatives, shall have the right to 
review and copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the 
performance of this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for 



30 
 

five (5) years after the Department closes its HUD grant or any other period 
specified in 24 C.F.R. § 576.500 (y). 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 309. Insurance Coverage 
 

The Contractor must obtain and retain insurance coverage pursuant to the requirements 
of 2 C.F.R. § 200.310 on real and personal property with federal funds or essential to 
the fulfillment of the grant. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 
 

§ 310. Requirements for Real and Personal Property Acquired with Grant Funds 
 

(a) The Contractor must provide information to the Department annually on all real 
and personal property acquired under the Standard Agreement.   
 

(b) The Contractor cannot dispose of real and personal property without the written 
approval of the Department and HUD. The Contractor must contact the 
Department to obtain disposition instructions pursuant to the requirements of 2 
C.F.R. § 200.311 through 200.316 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.330. 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 311. Debarment and Suspension 
 

(a) The Department will not award any ESG funds to Applicants that are debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible or voluntarily 
excluded from participation from programs. 
 

(b) Verification of Debarment and Suspension 
 

(1) The Contractor must comply with the regulations on government-wide 
suspension and debarment in 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and must require its 
Service Providers to comply with these provisions. These provisions 
restrict federal awards, subawards, and contracts with parties that are 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for 
participation in federal programs or activities.  



31 
 

 
(c) The Contractor must provide evidence to the Department at time of application, 

award, and any Subcontractor changes that all parties are not debarred by doing 
the following: 
 

(1) Obtain a Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) and maintain an active federal 
System for Awards Management (SAM) registration with current 
information pursuant to the regulations at 2 C.F.R. Part 25. 

 
(2) At the time of application, the entity must submit a SAM printout displaying 

their UEI, an active SAM registration, and the date of verification. 
 

(3) Before entering into any ESG-funded agreement, the entity must verify 
that all participating parties (including Contractors, Subcontractors, 
Subrecipients, Service Providers, consultants, etc.) have a UEI, are 
actively registered in SAM, and are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise 
prohibited from participating in Federally funded programs and activities.  

 
(4) In the event that an entity is debarred or suspended, the Department will 

inform the Applicant that their application will not be considered for review. 
 

(5) Before issuing Standard Agreements, the Department will ensure that no 
ESG funds are awarded to entities that are suspended, debarred, 
proposed for debarment, voluntarily excluded from, or otherwise ineligible 
for participation in federally assisted programs or activities. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 312. Audit Requirements 
 

(a) Contractors must arrange for independent audits on all ESG grants consistent 
with 2 C.F.R. § 200.500 to 200.512. 
 

(b) Contractor agrees to maintain accounting books and records in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, per 2 C.F.R. § 200.49. Contractor 
agrees that the Department, the Department of General Services, the Office of 
State Audits and Evaluations, HUD and/or their designated representatives (such 
as Office of Inspector General, “OIG”), shall have the right to review and copy 
any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the performance of this 
Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for five 
(5) years after the Department closes its HUD grant or any other period specified 
in 24 C.F.R. § 576.500 (y). Federal ESG funds must be used for their intended 



32 
 

purpose, and ESG awardees must account for costs and justify expenditures. 
OIG is responsible for investigating allegations of fraud, waste, and abuse. 

 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 313. Conflicts of Interest 
 

Contractors must enforce standards for conflicts of interest which govern the 
performance of their officers, employees, or agents engaged in the award and 
administration of State ESG funds. The standards for conflicts of interest shall prohibit  
any conflict of interest as defined in 24 C.F.R. § 576.404, which is hereby incorporated 
by reference. The Department will use the criteria and standards set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 
576.404 and any applicable California conflicts of interest rules in evaluating questions 
concerning potential conflicts of interest. 
 
NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 314. Sanctions 
 

a) The Department may impose sanctions, as well as any other remedies available 
to it under law or these Guidelines, on a Contractor for failure to abide by any 
State and federal laws, regulations, and Guidelines applicable to the ESG 
program. As the Department deems appropriate or necessary, sanctions include 
but are not limited to, without limitation, any or all of the following:  

 
(1) Conditioning a future ESG grant on compliance with specific laws, 

regulations, or Guidelines; 
 

(2) Directing a Contractor to stop incurring costs under the current grant;  

(3) Requiring that some or all of the grant amount be remitted to the 
Department;  

(4)  Reducing the amount of grant funds a Contractor would otherwise be 
entitled to receive;  

(5) Barring a Contractor and or its organization from applying for future 
funding for at least the next three Annual Funding Cycles. If the penalty is 
upheld, the CoC may select another Applicant. Refer to Section 202 (b) of 
these Guidelines. 



33 
 

(6) In addition, the Department may prohibit a Contractor from awarding to a 
particular Service Provider of the Contractor until appropriate actions are 
taken to ensure compliance with ESG requirements; and/or 

(7)  Taking any other actions permitted pursuant to 24 C.F.R. § 576.501.  

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 315. False, Fictitious or Fraudulent Claims:   
 

(a) This information is current as of the date of these Guidelines. This information is 
subject to change over time. Please verify with HUD for updates. 
 

(b) Warning: Any person who knowingly makes a false claim or statement to HUD or 
the Department may be subject to civil or criminal penalties under 18 U.S.C. 287, 
1001 and 31 U.S.C. 3729. 
 

(c)  Detecting, Preventing, and Reporting Fraud 
 

(1) Fraud is a white-collar crime that has a devastating effect on the ESG 
program because the ESG program beneficiaries are victims of this crime 
when the ESG program is abused. 

 

(2) The Department wants to stop any criminal assault on the ESG program 
it administers, and in doing so all ESG funds go to people it was designed 
to help and improve their living conditions.  

 
(d) Combatting Fraud 

 
(1) The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

Office of Inspector General (OIG) is committed to protecting HUD’s 
programs, operations, and beneficiaries from dishonest individuals and 
organizations.  

 

(2) HUD cannot combat fraud alone.  
 

(3) HUD relies on the Department and ESG NOFA Applicants to combat 
ESG program fraud. HUD also relies on Applicants for, and people 
receiving, HUD benefits, such as tenants receiving rental assistance, 
borrowers with HUD insured loans, or citizens having their 
communities restored using HUD grants. 

 



34 
 

(4) The HUD OIG Hotline number is 1-800-347-3735. This is the primary 
means to submit allegations of fraud, waste, abuse, mismanagement, 
or Whistleblower related matters for the ESG program to the Office of 
Inspector General.  

 

(5) HUD OIG accepts reports of fraud, waste, abuse, or mismanagement 
in the ESG program from HUD employees, anyone administering the 
ESG program, anyone working in the ESG program, Contractors, and 
the public. 

 

(6) You can report mismanagement or violations of law, rules, or 
regulations by HUD employees or program participants. 

 

(7) Fraud, Waste and Abuse in the ESG program and its operation may be 
reported in one of the following four (4) ways: 

 
Email to: hotline@hudoig.gov 
By Phone: Call toll free: 1-800-347-3735 
By Fax: 202-708-4829 
By Mail: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 

 
  HUD OIG, Office of Investigation, Room 1200 
   Field Office 

        One Sansome Street 
       San Francisco, CA 94104 

  (213) 534-2518 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 316. Cancellations and Defaults 
 

(a) In the event of a breach by the Contractor of any of the provisions of the 
Standard Agreement, the Department may give written notice to the 
Contractor to cure the breach or violation within a period of not less than 14 
days. If the Contractor does not cure the breach to the satisfaction of the 
Department within the specified time, the Department, at its option, may 
declare a default under the Standard Agreement and may seek legal remedies 
for the default, including without limitation, the following:  

(1) Terminate the Standard Agreement; 

(2) The Department may seek, in a court of competent jurisdiction, an order 
for specific performance of the defaulted obligation; or  

mailto:hotline@hudoig.gov
tel:(213)%20534-2518


35 
 

(3) Any other remedy available under law. 

(b) The Department may require the Contractor to amend the Standard 
Agreement if the Department decides that it is necessary for the Contractor to 
comply with these Guidelines or applicable State and federal law.  

(c) The Department may cancel or reduce an award under any of the following 
conditions: 

(1) The Contractor is not in compliance or will not comply with these 
Guidelines or any applicable State and federal law; 

(2) The Department terminates the Standard Agreement with the Contractor; 

(3) Implementation of the Eligible Activity does not, or will not, comply with the 
deadlines, time frames, and goals stated in the HUD grant agreement, 
AAP, Contractor’s application, these Guidelines, or NOFA; 

(4) The Contractor requests to have its award cancelled; 

(5) There has been a material change, not approved by the Department, in 
the Eligible Activity;  

(6) If the Contractor made any misrepresentation of any material fact to the 
Department in connection with its application or concealed any material 
fact to the Department; or 

(7) HUD reduces or eliminates the Department's ESG funds and there are not 
enough funds available for the Eligible Activity. 

(d) At least 15 days before the effective date of the Department’s cancellation or 
reduction of an award, the Department must provide written notice to the 
Contractor of the Department’s intent to cancel or reduce the award. The 
Contractor may appeal the Department’s decision to cancel or reduce an award 
to the Department’s Deputy Director of the Division of Federal Financial 
Assistance or his/her designee. 

(e) Upon the Department’s written notification to the Contractor that the 
Contractor’s ESG funding has been terminated, reduced, or cancelled, the 
Contractor must: 

(1) Complete all work affected by the Department’s termination, reduction, or 
cancellation that is in progress; and 

(2) Terminate any other activities that were to be paid for with ESG funds 
affected by the Department’s termination, reduction, or cancellation of the 
Contractor’s ESG funds. 



36 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 

§ 317. Housing First Practices 
 

(a) ‘Housing First’ means the evidence-based model that uses housing as a tool 
 rather  than a reward for recovery and that centers on providing or connecting 
 homeless people to permanent housing as quickly as possible. Housing First 
 providers offer services as needed and requested on a voluntary basis and 
 that do not make housing contingent on participation in services. 

 
b) All ESG-assisted projects shall operate in a manner consistent with Housing First 

practices as reflected in the Housing First Core components, CoC written 
standards, progressive engagement, and assistance practices as set forth in 
Welfare and Institution Code (WIC) 8255-8256 and 24 C.F.R. § 576.400, 
including but not limited to the following: 

 
(1)  Ensuring low-barrier, easily accessible assistance to all people, including, 

 but not limited to, people with no income or low-income history, and 
 people with active substance abuse or mental health issues; 

(2)  Helping participants quickly identify and resolve barriers to obtaining and  
  maintaining housing; 

(3) Quickly resolving a participant’s housing crisis before focusing on other 
non-housing related services; 
 

(4) Allowing participants to choose the services and housing that meets their 
needs, within practical and funding limitations; and 
 

(5) Connecting participants to appropriate support services available in the 
community that fosters long-term housing stability. 

 

§ 318. Other Federal and State Requirements  
 
Contractors and Service Providers of the Contractor shall abide by all applicable local, 
State, and federal laws pertaining to the ESG program, including, but not limited to, all 
other applicable federal laws cited in 42 U.S.C. 11371-11378, 24 C.F.R. Part 576, and 
HSC 50899.1-50899.8. 

Knowingly spending State or federal funds in violation of a statute or guideline is a 
felony and punishable by up to six years in prison and disbarment from public service. 
See Penal Code (PC) 424 & 425. 



37 
 

Whistleblower Protection Acts  

Federal Whistleblower Protection Act (5 U.S.C. 2302(b)(8))   

The Federal Whistleblower Protection Act (WPA) protects employees from retaliation for 
making protected disclosures. The WPA also provides penalties for supervisors who 
retaliate against Whistleblowers.   

(a) A disclosure is protected under the WPA if the employee discloses information the 
 employee reasonably believes to be evidence of:  

(1) a violation of any law, rule, or regulation,  

(2) gross mismanagement,  

(3) a gross waste of funds,  

(4) an abuse of authority, or  

(5) a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety.  

(b) In general, an employee or Applicant may make a protected disclosure to anyone, 
including non-governmental audiences, unless the information is classified or 
specifically prohibited by law from release. Options for making a protected disclosure 
include:  

(1) Informing a supervisor or someone higher up in management,  

(2) Submitting a complaint to the OIG by emailing the OIG at oig@ftc.gov,  

(3) Filing a complaint with the Office of Special Counsel (OSC) http://www.osc.gov/.   

The California Whistleblower Protection Act (Title 2, Division 1, Chapter 6.5, 
Article 3.5, Gov. Code §§ 8548-8548.5)  

 (c)The California Whistleblower Protection Act authorizes the California State Auditor to 
receive complaints from State employees and members of the public who wish to 
report an improper governmental activity. An "improper governmental activity" is any 
action by a State agency or any action by a State employee directly related to State 
government that:             

(1) Violates any State or federal law or regulation,   

mailto:oig@ftc.gov
http://www.osc.gov/
http://www.osc.gov/


38 
 

(2) Violates an Executive Order of the Governor, a California Rule of Court, or any 
 policy or procedure required by the State Administrative Manual or State 
 Contracting Manual, or  

(3) Is economically wasteful or involves gross misconduct, incompetency, or 
 inefficiency. Complaints received by the State Auditor are confidential, and the 
 identity of the complainant may not be revealed without the complainant's 
 permission, aside from to an appropriate law enforcement agency conducting a 
 criminal investigation.  

NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

Article 4. Appeals Process  
 
§ 400. DFFA Competitive NOFAs Only Appeals 
 
The Department will provide opportunity to appeal any disagreed points assessment, 
pursuant to the appeals process as set forth in the NOFA. Disqualifying threshold 
determinations shall also follow a similar process, which shall be set forth in greater 
detail in the NOFA. For reference, all such appeals must be received by the Department 
no later than five (5) or ten (10) business days from the date of the Department’s 
threshold review, and/ or initial score letter, as applicable, representing the 
Department’s decision made in response to the application. 
 
NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 

 
§ 401. All DFFA Programs Any Request to Appeal 
 
Any request to appeal the Department’s decision regarding an application shall be 
reviewed for compliance with these Guidelines and the NOFA. All decisions rendered 
shall be final, binding, and conclusive, and shall constitute the final action of the 
Department. 
 
NOTE: Authority cited: Health and Safety Code 50899.1 through 50899.8 



 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

January 8, 2025 

VC CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Review and Approval of a Reallocation of the U.S. Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) Continuum of Care (CoC) Fiscal Year 2024-25 Rapid Rehousing (RRH) Grant. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The Ventura County Continuum of Care (VC CoC) was awarded renewal grant funding 
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for Rapid Rehousing (RRH) during 
the grant term of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. The FY2024-25 RRH grant was previously awarded 
to Lutheran Social Services (LSS) through the competitive HUD CoC renewal process. The VC CoC staff 
were notified in July 2024 that LSS was closing day service operations in Thousand Oaks and had 
intended to continue with the RRH grant services; however, the Chief Executive Officer of LSS informed 
the VC CoC staff on October 18, 2024 that LSS would be pausing all operations in Ventura County and 
will take several months to regroup and reassess to serve our community effectively. The VC CoC Board 
authorized the release of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the reallocation of the FY2024-25 RRH grant. 

DISCUSSION:  There were two applications received in response to the RFP for the FY2024-25 HUD CoC 
RRH renewal funding in the amount of $223,295. VC CoC staff reviewed the two proposals based on the 
CoC Review Policy and one did not meet the minimum threshold required for CoC RRH funding. The 
successful proposal received by United Way of Ventura County scored 93 out of 100 points and was 
presented to the CoC Data, Performance & Evaluation Committee for review and recommended for 
funding. The proposal by United Way of Ventura County intends to serve 39 homeless families with 
additional leveraged funds from State grants and private funding to support housing retention. The 
State match funds will be used to cover application fees, holding deposits, and signing bonuses to 
provide landlord incentives for successful housing placements. United Way’s Landlord Engagement 
Program works closely with homeless service providers to improve housing outcomes through quick 
payment turnarounds. Over the past year, United Way has successfully housed 140 households with a 
99% housing retention rate.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Reallocation of the HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) Fiscal Year 2024-
25 Rapid Rehousing (RRH) Grant in the amount of $223,295 to United Way of Ventura County.  

 


	Meeting Agenda
	Continuum of Care (CoC) Board
	ADPEAB6.tmp
	Meeting Minutes
	Continuum of Care (CoC) Board

	Item 9a - 2024-25 ESG NOFA Calendar.pdf
	2024-2025

	Item 9b - 2024-25 ESG Program Guidelines 12.10.24.pdf
	Article I. General
	§ 100. General
	§ 101. Primary Objectives
	§ 102. Definitions
	§ 103. Program and Administrative Requirements
	§ 104. Nondiscrimination

	Article 2. Method of Distribution
	§ 200. Allocations
	§ 201. Eligible Components and Activities
	§ 202. Eligible Applicants/Organizations
	§ 203. Notice of Funding Availability
	§ 204. Special Disaster or Emergency Supplemental Assistance NOFAs
	§ 205. Contents of the Application
	§ 206. Evaluation Criteria
	§ 207. Award of Funds
	§ 208. Indirect Costs
	§ 209. Match
	§ 210. Match Exemption Competition
	§ 211. Administrative Cost Limitation
	§ 212. Advanced Payments

	Article 3. Grant Administration
	§ 300. Standard Agreements
	§ 301.  Procurement of Equipment, Goods and Services
	§ 302. Program Income
	§ 303. Financial and Performance Reporting Requirements
	§ 304. Monitoring of Program Performance
	§ 305. Grant Payment Requirements
	§ 306. Revision Procedures
	§ 307. Closeout Procedures
	§ 308. Retention and Custodial Requirements for Records
	§ 309. Insurance Coverage
	§ 310. Requirements for Real and Personal Property Acquired with Grant Funds
	§ 311. Debarment and Suspension
	§ 312. Audit Requirements
	§ 313. Conflicts of Interest
	§ 314. Sanctions
	§ 315. False, Fictitious or Fraudulent Claims:
	§ 316. Cancellations and Defaults
	§ 317. Housing First Practices
	§ 318. Other Federal and State Requirements

	Article 4. Appeals Process
	§ 400. DFFA Competitive NOFAs Only Appeals
	§ 401. All DFFA Programs Any Request to Appeal





